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Gehl Europe provides a timely lift

lntemational demand for Gehl

Company’s skid loaders, including
shipments by Gehl Europe, was up
37% in 2007 compared with 2006.

There are sound reasons for Gehl
Europe’s performance: It remains
closely aligned with Gehl Company's
mission, it has an on-the-ground

International Distribution

]
Gehi & Mustang Brand
Distributors In;
Argentina Israel South Africa
Australia Italy Spain
Chile Mexico Sweden
Colombia Netherlands Switzerland
Costa Rica New Zealand Taiwan
Egypl MNorway United Arab Emirates
Finland Panama United Kingdom
Germany Portugal Venezyela
Greece Puerto Rico
Guatemala Saud! Arabia
India
Ireland

knowledge of the markets and
customer sectors, and it demonstrates
a willingness to tailor the products
to specific needs.

Martin Nieland, Managing Director of
Gehl Europe, and a staff of 26 drive the
marketing, sales, distribution and service
of Gehl equipment throughout Europe.

[— ]
Gehl Brand
Distributors In:
Austria Pakistan
Belgium Peru
Bulgaria Ramanta
China Serbia/
Denmark Manteinegro
France Singapore
Indonesia Slovakia
lraq South Korea
jordan Thailand
Lebanon Tunisia
Lithuania Turkey
Malaysia
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Mustang Brand
Distributors In:

Algeria
Bahrain
Barbados
Ecuador
Philippines
Russia




international Sales

A strong internationat Department

focuses on growth

Based in Wisconsin, members of
the Intemational Department travel
far and wide to foster new business
relationships to open up additional
countries to Gehl and Mustang
products. Staff provides support to
established distributors and cus-
tomers by phone, email, couriers
—whatever it takes to make it

easy to do business with Geh!and

Mustang from anywhere in the world.

Their efforts are helping to increase
the percentage of overalt Company
sales originating from outside the U.S.

INTERNATIONAL
% TOTAL SALES - 2007

Domestic Sales

)

Soles Outside
the U.5.

7%

—an incregse
of 31% from 2006.

The Internatignal team
includes Qeft to right):
George Harlaquinn, Koren
Pieniazek, Annette Landvatter,
Jovier Davila (kneeling).,
Michael Bullock (Director Intl.
Soles), Todd Dohnal, Nicole
Bienlein, Tammy Loos.
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of compact equipment products displayed at the 2008
World of Concrete show in Las Vegas.

On the front cover: A detait of the RS5-19 engine cover
grillwork illustrates Gehl Company's sysiematic approach
to transforming ideas and information inio successiul
new products for niche markets. (story: page &)




GEHL.

Financial Highlights
2007

Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Datg 2007 2006 % tncrease (Decreose)

FORTET VEAR

Net sales S 457,612 $ 486,217 6)%
Income from operations 43,610 46,134 (5%
Net income from continuing operatigns 24,949 28,078 (11)%
EIALLND
Accounts receivable (net) $190,439 $ 187,582 2%
Total assets 407,962 365,110 12%
Total debt 71,637 50,454 42%
Working capital 207,561 201,529 3%
Sharehalders’ equity 261,030 230,781 13%
PER HHARE
Diluted netincome $ 200 $ 226 (12)%
Book value 21.52 18,92 14%

Shores oulstonding at year-end: 2007-12,127,623; 2006-12,197,037.

Forward-Lookin.g Slatement Notice: Please see page 1 of the accompanying Form 10-K "Speciol Note Regarding Forward-Laoking
Statements.”
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Letter to Shareholders

The Company's results in 2007 were
positive and in line with expectations
given the decline experienced in our
domestic markets as a result of a
slowdown in residential construction
and reduced rental activity in North
America. Net sales of $458 million in
2007 were down only slightly from
2006. Gross profit margin improved
from 21.5% to 22.6% in 2007. Selling,
Genera! and Administrative expenses
were 13.0% of net sales compared to
12.0% in 2006. Net income from
continuing operations was $24.9 million
compared to $28.1 million in 2006.
Fully diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations were $2.00
compared to $2.26 in 2006.

In pursuit of our goal to become a sig-
nificant player in compact equipment,
the Company made excellent progress in
expanding its share of the telehandler
and skid loader markets in both our
North American and offshore markets.
Our complete range of products and
models, broad worldwide distribution
and product reliability were the keys to
our continued success. The introduction
of the new RS5-19 telehandler, a com-
pact tetehandler designed to address a
growing segment of the telehandler
market, assisted us in gaining market
share in the depressed North American
telehandler market.

In the future, even greater emphasis
will be placed on research and design
activities as we bring our new Corporate
Research and Development facility on
line in 2008. This new 72,000-square-
foot facility will provide us with a
state-of-the-art engineering environment
conducive to designing and introducing
more product models and entirely
new product lines to strengthen our
position in compact equipment both
domestically and overseas.

Offsetting some of the slowness in the
U.S. skid loader market, our European-
based subsidiary, Gehl Europe,

had a very successful year with sales
up 32% over 2006. The Western and
Eastern European markets for skid
loaders were healthy and Gehl Europe
increased its share penetration

in these markets significantly.

William D.Gehl
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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Compact equfpment marketsin
Russia have r'ecenlly become more
active and we sold a large number of
Mustang skid loaders in Russia in
2007. This business looks promising
for 2008 as well, Total Company
internaliona[isales comprised 29% of
the Company,’s revenue in 2007,

The Company{ further enhanced its
manufacturing facilities in 2007 with
the completi%m of the most secent
expansion of the Yankton, South Dakota
telehandler plant and upgrades to our
Madison, South Dakota skid loader
plant. Theseltwo manufacturing
facitities are highly efficient and
exemplify modern manufacturing
techniques designed to reduce lead
times and improve quality.

The Company's timely execution of its
strategy to biecome a more significant
player in global compact equipment
enabled us 1o grow business in the
face of some|strong headwinds,
especially inithe North American
telehandler market. Our diligent
adherence to chasing costs out of the
business resulted in improved 81058
margins and|helped position the
Company to grow market share
invery compfetitive eguipment

We intend to continue to pursue our
compact equipment strategy in
2008 and we are confident that we
will continue to make significant
progress in our quest 1o become one
of the leading global manufacturers
and distributors of compact equip-
ment for the construction and
agricuttural markets.

We are thankful for the loyalty of
our dealers and customers. Gehl
Company's success is built on main-
taining their trust and support. Our
aumber one priority is to provide
innovative quality products to meet
our customers’ needs on farms and
jobsites throughout the world. Our
employees reaffirm our commitment
to our customers daily and are to be
congratulated for their rote in the
Company's success in 2007. We are
especially grateful to all of our
shareholders for their support.

Yours very truty,

Gtto oty

William D. Gehl

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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New Product Development

RS5-19 Telescopic Handler
Identifying Niche Opportunities

- Discussions with large
rental companies

- Recagnition of unmet needs in
the compact equipment markets,
particularly where low overhead
clearance, reduced weight and small
equipment footprint are important

Designing and Engineering the Concept

- Initiat product definition developed
by multi-disciplinary team including:
* Gehl and Mustang sales
* Product management
* Engineering
» Manufacturing

- Engineering development proceeded
in parallel with exterior design

>==- Engineering and Manufacturing the Product

~ Computer-aided stress analysis
models evaluated In concert with
prototype machine testing

- Yankton, S.D., plant reconfigured
and expanded for flexibility,
greater efficiency and new RS5-19
model production

- Additional prototypes built for dealer
and customer evaluation

- Service Manager input gathered
regarding maintenance and
serviceability of the new product

/>=- Preparing the Markets

- Pilot machines widely distributed
to dealerships for analysis In
“real world” applications, boosting
awareness and anticipation

- Advertising and sales staff analyze
second-round pilot machinesto
begin preparing marketing plans
and materials

— Full implementation of marketing plan

begins, including trade show displays
and trade press articles

Developing the Revenue Stream

- Dealer incentives, financing packages
and field sales generate immediate
s positive response to the new R55-19

An entirely reconfigured and better equipped
system of wash and paint lines in the Yankton,
South Dakota, facility is typical of improvements
throughout the plant.




Above: in the background, one continuously
maving line of steel parts exits a washing
chamber and enters one of two in-line point
booths, which apply primer and then paini.

in the foreground, freshly painted parts move
back toward the assembly areas. The result is
less downtime, less iabor and less hondling of
parts on the way to finished products.

From initial concept to finished new
Gehl and Mustang products on the
sales floor, the time required for the
complete development cycle has
been compressed from five years
just a decade ago to a remarkable
18-24 months,

The RS5-19 Telescoplic Handler
provides an excellent example of a
successful new product that is the
result of several strategic improve-
ments the Company has put in place:

e Listening to customers —
responding to input and requests
Feedback from some of qur key
equipment rental customers sug-
gested the need in certain markets
for a smaller, rugged telehandler
with a lower overhead clearance.

* Improved internal communications
coupled with greater utilization of
multi-disciplinary project teams
Sales, product management,
engineering, supply-chain manage-
ment and manufacturing joined
forces to define the new product —
including costs, timetables and
manufacturing implications.

* Investments in engineering
facilities, equipment and staff
Essential to the product development
process is & nimble, experienced
and visionary engineering capability
that can reach across the
boundaries of various departments
and disciplines to ensure

(continued on page 6}




New Product Development

RS55-19 Telescopic Handler
{continued)

(continued from page 5)

that the new product will be robust,

manufacturable, appealing to the eye,

loaded with desirable features,
serviceable and available in the
marketplace in a timely fashion.

* Continuing upgrades to
manufacturing equipment and
rationalization of the plants
During 2007, the Yankton manufac-
turing facility continued several
initiatives intended to cut costs,
increase space and capacity, build
greater flexibility into the product
assembly areas and streamline the
flow of malerials and parts.

With the new R55-19 model going
into full production, Yankton added
laser cutting machines, material

handling equipment and paint lines.

 Greater use of computer-aided
stress analysis, product prototypes
and new product testing
Costly delays in the development of
the RS5-19 were avoided through
the more comprehensive use of new
technologies and the inclusion of
customers and service personnel in
ongoing evaluations. Two pilot runs
in rapid succession provided ample
opportunities to fine-tune the
product specifications, features and
assembly processes.

A team of workers at the Yankton plant learn the

ins and outs of a new and more efficient digital
cutting system installed in 2007,

Computer-aided stress analysis models helped
to predict and ovoid weaknesses in the RS5-19
structures. This eliminated much of the triol-and-
error associated with the prototyping phase of
the product development process.




* Integrated and comprehensive
product and brand marketing
From stronger product visual designs
to more sophisticated, timely
marketing services, the promotion of
the RS5-19 was integrated into the
product development process,
The look of the RS5-19 involved the
contributions of both intemal staff
and external industrial design
resources in order to maximize the
impact and strength of the machine’s
appearance.

Marketing Services personnel created

the product identification decals for the

new machines and prepared “launch”
kits, including video features, to
promote 1he new product to dealers.

Above: Product idenlifi-
cation and safety decals
provide the finishing
touches to en RS5-19
model ready fo ship.

Atleft: AMustang model
telehandler moves through
one of the Yankton assembly
areas. Flexibility built inte
the layout of the plant allows
for the manufacturing of
products for bath the
Mustang and Gehl brands
in the same areas during
the same work shift.



At Foster's Motaer Company, a Pine Bluff,

Arkansas, Gehl dealership, two employees
pause ta discuss the addition of the new
RS5-19 telerandier to their line-up of
Gehl product offerings.
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PART |

Spegial Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Gehl Company (the “Company” or “Gehl”) intends that certain matters discusscd in this Annual Report on Form
10-K are “forward-looking statements” intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability established by the Private
Sec:gtics Litigation Reform Act of 1995, All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking
statements. When used in this filing, words such as the Company “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “estimates” or
“prolects” or words of similar meaning are generally intended to identify forward-looking statements. These forward-
look|ng statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties, assumptions and
othet factors, some of which arc beyond the Company’s control that could cause ectual results to differ materially from
thos¢ anticipated as of the date of this filing. Factors that could cause such a variance include, but are not limited to,
thosk risk factors cited in Part I, Item 1A of this filing, any adverse change in general economic conditions,
unagticipated changes in capital market conditions, the Company’s ability to implement successfully its strategic
initintives (including cost reduction initiatives), market acceptance of newly introduced products, unexpected issues
relafed to the pricing and availability of raw materials (including steel) and component parts, unanticipated
difficuhties in securing product from third party manufacturing sources, the ability of the Company to increase its
pricps to reflect higher prices for raw materials and component parts, the cyclical nature of the Company’s business,
the Company’s and its customers’ access to credit, competitive pricing, product initiatives and other actions taken by
conipetitors, disruptions in production capacity, excess inventory levels, the effect of changes in laws and
regdlations (including government subsidics and intemational trade regulations), technological difficulties, changes
in cliurency exchange rates or interest rates, the Company’s ability to secure sources of liquidity necessary to fund its
opefations, changes in environmental laws, the impact of any sirategic transactions effected by the Company, and
emgloyee and labor relations. Shareholders, potential investors, and other readers are urged to consider these factors
in elaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
stattments. The forward-looking statements included in this filing arc only made as of the date of this filing, and the
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events
or dircumstances. In addition, the Company's expectations for the future, inctuding those Jisted in the “2008
Outlook™ below, are based in part on certain assumptions made by the Company, including those relating to

odities prices, which are strongly affected by weather and other factors and can fluctuate significantly,
ing starts and other construction activities, which are sensitive to, among other things, interest rates and
government spending, and the performance of the U.S. economy generally. The accuracy of these or other
asspmptions could have a material effect on the Company's ability to achieve its expectations.

"

The Company is a leader in the design, manufacture and distribution of compact equipment for construction
and agriculture applications. Its compact equipment and related attachments are primarily used in a variety of
earthmoving and material handling applications where space, mobility and manpower arc at a premium. The
Cofnpany also provides financing for its dealers and their customers. The Company believes its products are

gnized as providing quality, reliability and performance to a foyal and growing customer base. It also believes it
is differentiated from other construction equipment manufacturers by its focus en the growing compact equipment
market, its extensive compact equipment-focused distribution network, and its ability to offer a broad line of high-
quglity compact equipment to a wide variety of customers. The Company was founded in 1859 and was
ingorporated in the State of Wisconsin in 1890.

The Company believes that it has one of the most extensive compact equipment-focused product offerings in
Ndgrth America. Its compact equipment consists of skid loaders, telescopic handlers, compact excavators, compact
trakk loaders, all-wheel-steer loaders and asphalt pavers. The Company also provides an assortment of related
attachments, including pallet forks, augers and backhoes, primarily for skid loaders. While the Company
mdnufactures a majority of the products it sells, it has also proactively established strategic alliances with select
opean and Asian compact equipment manufacturers to distribute their products under its brand names. These
aillances further broaden the Company's product offering and leverage its distribution network.




The Company markets its products under the Gehl, Mustang and Edge brand names through its network of
independent dealers located primarily in North America and Europe. The Company’s dealers, which number in
excess of 630 in North America along with approximately |10 distributors in the rest of the world, sell its compact
vipment and attachments to contractors, sub-contractors, owner operators, rental stores, farmers, landscapers and
nicipalities. Many of these dealers also operate their own rental fleets. Over time, the Company has cultivated
arid built what it considers to be one of the largest independent compact equipraent distribution networks in North
erica. The Company attempts to differentiate itself by offering dealers a comprehensive compact equipment
offering and allowing them to carry only the products which optimize their overall product portfolio for their
ividually served markets. It also supports its dealer network by providing floor plan, retail and rental fleet
financing. It believes the combination of its product offering and financing support provides a significant
opportunity to continue to expand sales to existing dealers and attract additional dealers in new territories.

The Company manufactures its products at rwo facilities located in Yankton and Madison, South Dakota, and
it|has selling and distribution facilities in lllinois, Minnesota, Wisconsin and Germany. Also, under a license

ement with Manitou BF S.A., the world's largest manufacturer of telescopic handlers, the Company has the
ribhts to manufacture and distribute select models of Manitou telescopic handiers under the Gehl brand name for
sdle in the United States.

Discontinued Operations

In March 2006, the Company decided to discontinue the manufacturing and distribution of its agricultural
ithplement products. The agricultural impement business included one manufacturing facility and related
njanufacturing machinery and equipment. The reduction in headcount totaled 140 employees, which included both
nfanufacturing and administrative positions related to the agricultural implement business. As a result of this action,
tHe Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes have been restated to present the results of the agricultural
ifplement product line as discontinued operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the discontinuation of the agricultural implement product line was concluded and
rdsulted in an after-tax charge to the Company's earnings for the year ended December 31, 2007 of $0.3 miliion, or
$0.02 per diluted share, which included additional employce severance and related benefits costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the discontinuation of the agricultural implement product line resulted
il an after-tax charge of $7.8 million, or $0.63 per diluted share. The cumulative afier-tax charge is comprised of
bn-cash asset impairment charges of $5.9 million related to agricultural implement field and factory inventory and
rtain property, plant and equipment, and cash cherges related to severance and other employee termination costs
F$£2.2 million.

[N v 2 |

The Company has reflected the results of its agricultural implements product line as discontinued operations in
\e Consolidated Statements of Income and 2005 results have been restated. Summary results of operations for the
pricultural implements product line were as follows (in thousands):

= =

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Net sales $ 150 $ 10,489 $ 31,255
Pretax loss from discontinued
operations $  (383) $  (1,190) $ (525
Pretax loss on disposal of
discontinued operations (429) (11,996) -
Income tax benefit 270 45615 187
Loss from discontinued operations s (542) $  (8,571) [3 (338)




The assets of the agricultural implements product line are reflected as net assets of discontinued operations in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006

Accounts receivable, net ] 152 $ 1,33t
Inventories - 387
Property, plant, and equipment, net 110 1,865
Assets of discontinued operations, net 5 262 $ 3,783

In the three month period ended September 30, 2007, the Company reclassificd property, plant and cquipment
totaling $1.3 million from assets of discontinued operations to property, plant and equipment — net on the
Conkolidated Balance Sheets as the result of a decision to renovate a discontinued manufacturing facility for use as 2
future rescarch and development facility.

Profiucts

The Company markets the following products through its North American dealer and international
distfibution network:

»  Skid Loaders - The Company’s skid loader line consists of a broad range of products offered
through the Gehl and Mustang brands, including a mode] with the largest lift capacity and highest
lift height in the industry, The skid loader line features a choice of hand-operated T-bar or joystick
controls, hand only or hand and foot controls. The skid loader, with its fixed-whee! four-wheel
drive is used for a variety of purposes, including earth moving and material handling duties. The
skid loader may also be used with a variety of attachments.

= Telescopic Handlers - The Company’s telescopic handler line consists of a broad range of products
offered through the Gehl and Mustang brands. These telescopic handlers are designed to handle
heavy loads (up to 12,000 pounds) reaching horizontally and vertically (up to 55 fi.) for use by a
variety of customers, including farmers, masons, roofers and building contractors.

= Compact Excavators — The Company's compact excavator line consists of a broad range of products
offered through the Gehl and Mustang brands. The units range in size from 1.5 metric tons to 11.5
metric tons. All units come standard with auxiliary hydraulics. An industry exclusive frame
leveling system is offered on a number of models. These units can be equipped with a wide variety
of attachments.

»  Compact Track Loaders - The Company offers muitiple compact track loaders through the Gehl and
Mustang brands, With a dedicated rubber track, these machines are especially useful in soft or
muddy conditions, They offer low ground pressure and high floatation and are used in landscaping,
nursery and general construction applications.

»  All-wheel-steer Loaders — The Company offers multiple all-wheel-steer loaders through the Gehl
and Mustang brands with either conventional or telescopic booms. The units range from 39
horsepower to 75 horsepower and are used in generat construction and by building contractors and
material producers.

»  Asphalt Pavers — Two models of Power Box pavers are marketed by Gehl. These pavers allow
variable paving widihs from 4 1/2 to 13 feet and arc used for both commercial and municipal jobs
such as county and municipal road, sidewalk, golf cart path, jogging and bike trail, parking lot,
driveway, trailer court and tennis court paving.

Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Compact Equipment Attachments Inc., the Company distributes a wide
varjety of attachments primarily for use with skid loaders and compact excavators. These attachments include dirt,
snaw and cement buckets, pallet forks and hydraulicalty-operated devices such as cold planers, backhoes, brooms,
trenchers, snow blowers, industrial grapples, tree diggers, concrete breakers, augers and many others.
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arketing and Distribution

The Company markets its compact equipment in North America through approximately 630 independent
alers and internationally through approximately 110 distributors. The Company markets its attachments through
its dealer network as well as through non-Gehl or Mustang dealers, catalogs and its Compact Equipment
ttachments Inc. website. The Company’s top ten dealers and distributors of compact equipment accounted for
approximately 27% of the Company's consolidated sales for the year ended December 31, 2007. One national
count, Rental Service Corporation, accounted for approximately 1 1% of the Company's consolidated sales for the
ar ended December 31, 2007. Sales of the skid loader product line accounted for approximately 40%, 36% and
36% of the Company's consolidated sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Sales of the telescopic handler
oduct line accounted for approximately 32%, 33% and 26% of the Company's consolidated sales in 2007, 2006
d 2005, respectively.

)

The Company believes that maintenance and expansion of its dealer network is important to its ongeing
ccess in the compact equipment market. Various forms of support are provided for its equipment dealers,
cluding world-wide sales and service training, and, in the United States and Canada, floor plan financing for its
lers and retail financing for both its dealers and their customers. The equipment dealers in North America are
so supported by district sales managers who provide a variety of services, including training, market evaluation,

iness planning, equipment demonstrations and sales, and regional field service representatives who assist in
ining and provide routine dealer service support functions, including warranty and service assistance. The
ompany has a service agreement with a vendor for a centralized parts distribution center located in Belvidere,
itinois.

= W

Industry and Competition

The Company operates principally in the global compact equipment industry. Its equipment is primarily used
r earth moving, material handling and paving applications, particularly in projects where space, mobility and
anpower are at a premium. Sales in this market are driven by activity in the residential, commercial and industrial
nstruction, farming, recycling and paving industries. The market for compact equipment is particularly dependent
n the level of light construction and repair projects such as residential and light commercial building, landscaping
d recycling. Job mechanization continues to drive demand in the compact market as construction providers and
rmers look to replace costly manual labor with compact, affordable, multi-purpose machines.

The Company primarily focuses on six compact equipment product categorics: skid loaders, telescopic
andlers, compact excavators, compact track loaders, all-wheel-steer loaders and asphalt pavers. [t also provides an
rtment of related antachments, including pallet forks, augers and backhoes, primarily for skid loaders. The
ompany competes with numerous companies in each of its served markets, primarily based on price, quality,
rvice and distribution. Its compact equipment product lines face competition in all of the Company’s markets. In
eneral, each line competes with a small group of seven to twelve different companies, some of which are larger
an the Company.

The primary markets for the Company’s compact equipment outside of North America are in Europe,
Australia, Latin America, the Middle East and the Pacific Rim. The Company believes it is a significant competitor
ih the skid loader market in most of these markets,

acklog

The backlog of unfilled equipment orders (which orders are subject to cancellation in certain circumstances)
of December 31, 2007 was $39.6 million versus $51.6 million at December 31, 2006. Virtually all orders in the
acklog at December 31, 2007, are expected 1o be shipped in 2008. The decrease in the backlog is primarily
ttributable to a decrease in‘lead times as 2 result of available industry manufacturing capacity for telescopic
andlers and available inventory in the market at December 31, 2007, This decrease is being partially offset by
creased demand for the Company's skid loaders in both North America and intemnationally.




Floot Plan and Retail Financing

Fleog Plan Financing

The Company, as is typical in its industry, generally provides floor plan financing for its dealers. Products
shipgted to dealers under the Company's floor plan financing program are recorded by the Company as sales and the
dealars' obligations to the Company are reflected as accounts receivable.

The Company provides interest-free floor plan financing to its dealers for equipment for varying periods of
time,| generally up to nine months. Dealers who sell products utilizing floor plan financing are required to make
immediate payment for those products to the Company upon sale or delivery 1o the retail customer. At the end of
the interest-free period, if the equipment remains unsold to retail customers, the Company generally charges interest
10 thé dealer nt approximatety 3% above the prime rate or, on occasion, provides an interest-free extension of up to
threelmonths upon payment by the dealer of a curtailment of 25% of the original invoice price to the dealer. This
type pf floor plan equipment financing accounts for approximately 82% of the Company’s dealcr accounts
reccivable, with all such floor plan receivables required to be secured by a first priority security interest in the
cquig-mem sold.

Retatl Financing

The Company also provides retail financing primarily to facilitate the sale of equipment to end users.
jonally, a number of dealers purchase equipment which is held for rent to the public. The Company also
prov{des rental fleet financing to such dealers in connection with these purchases. Retail financing in the United
States is provided by the Company primarily through Gehl Finance, the Company's finance division. Retail

any continues to service the finance contracis it sells, including cash collections, For additional discussion,
anagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources — Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements - Sales of Finance Contracts Receivable,” included in Part 11,
Itern] 7 of this Form 10-K and Note 5 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,” included in Part I1, Item 8 of
this Form 10-K.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had 848 employees, of which 473 were hourly employees and 375
werd salaried employees. Currently none of the Company’s employces are represented by unions. There have been
no Igbor-related work stoppages at the Company's facilities during the past thirty-four years.

Mangufacturing and Sourcing

The Company manufactures its products at two efficient and flexible manufacturing facilities located in South
Dakgpta. In April 2006, the Company discontinued the manufacturing and disiribution of agricultural implements at
its facility in West Bend, Wisconsin. In 2006, the Company began a second expansion of its Yankton, South
Dak}ia facility that increased its manufacturing space by 28,100 square feet in addition to the expansion completed
in 2005 that increased the facility"s size by 53,200 square feet. The Company has further enhanced its
manpfacturing capabilities through significant investments in painting systems, laser cutting equipment, robotic
welding and other metal-forming technologies. The Company believes its ongoing investment in operational
cffidiency enhances its competitive cost position and operating margins.

The Company has esiablished key strategic relationships with leading compact equipment manufacturers to
market their products through the Company's distribution network under the Gehl and Mustang brands. [n July
2004, the Company announced a strategic alliance with the French company Manitou BF $.A, to manufacture and
distfibute select models of its market-leading compact telescopic handlers in the United States. Since 1999 the
Company has had a distribution arrangement covering North and South America with Wacker Neuson AG (formerly
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Neuson Kramer Baumaschinen AG), an Austrian and German manufacturer of compact excavators and all-wheel-
steer loaders. The Company also has a strategic alliance with Takeuchi Mfg. Co., Ltd, based in Japan to distribute
compaci track loaders in North and South America. 1n addition, most of the products in the Company’s wide
assortment of attachments are sourced from other leading manufacturers. The Company has actively expanded its
attachment offerings in response to the growing demand for product versatility. The Company pericdically assesses
its sourcing relationships and believes these relationships allow the Company to capitalize on its partners’ expertise
to provide a broad offering of top-quality compact equipment and attachments.

The Company purchases many commodities, such as steel and rubber, as well as component parts,
including engines and axies through various sources. In most cases, the Company’s raw malterials are sourced
through multiple supplicrs. Some of the Company’s products are designed to work only with particular
compenents and, as a result, rely on a single source of supply for certain components.

Research and Development

The Company atiempts to maintain and strengthen its market position through internal new product
development and incremental improvements to existing products. The Company's research and development is
devoted to developing new products that meet specific customer needs and to devising incremental improvements to
existing products. Research and development performed by the Company includes the designing and testing of new
and improved products as well as the fabrication of prototypes. The Company expended approximately $4.5
million, $2.8 million and $2.6 million on research and development for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2003, respectively.

Patents and Trademarks

The Company possesses rights under a number of domestic and foreign patents and trademarks relating to its
products and business. While the Company considers the patents, trademarks and service marks important in the
operation of its business, including Gehl®, Gehl Finance®, Mustang®, Dynalifti®, EDGE®, Hydraloc™,
Powerview®, Power Protection Plan® and Select-A-Boom™, the business of the Company is not dependent, in any
material respect, on any single patent or trademark or group of patents or trademarks.

Available Informaticn

The Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC"), including annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Schedule 14A, current reports on Form
8-K, and any amendments to those reports filed pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, are made
available free of charge through the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s [nternet website at
www.gehl.com as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such material with, or
furnishes it 10, the SEC. Copies of any materials the Company files with the SEC can also be obtained free of charge
through the SEC’s website at www sec.gov, at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington,
D.C. 20549, or by calling the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 1-800-732-0330. The Company also makes
available, free of charge, its Ethics Policy, Corporate Governance Guidelines, committee charters and other
information related to the Company on the Company’s Internet website or in printed form upon request.




Item 1A, Risk Factors

cO

You should carefully consider each of the risks described below, together with all of the other information
ined in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, before making an investment decision with respect to our

sechrities. If any of the following risks develop into actual cvents, our business, financial condition or results
from operations could be materially and adversely affected and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Weloperate in cyclical industries, which could adversely affect our growth and results of operations.

Our business depends upon general activity levels in the construction and agricultura) industries.

Histlon'cally, these industrics have been cyclical. As a result, our operating profits are susceptible to 2 number of
ind

stry-specific factors, including:
¢ prevailing levels of construction, especially housing starts, and levels of industrial production;
. public spending on infrastructure;
. market interest rates and the availability of credit;
. volatility of sales to renta! companies;
. real estate values;
. consumer confidence;
. changes in farm income and farmland value;
. the level of worldwide farm output and demand for farm products;
. comnodity prices;
. energy pnices,
. government agricultural policies and subsidies;
. animal diseases and crop pests; and
. weather.

As a result of these and other factors, including rclated effects on us and our customers' access to and cost

ofcredit and dealer inventory management, a downturn in demand for our products can occur suddenly, resulting

in

excess inventories, under-utilized production capacity and reduced sales prices for our products. These

dolwnturns may be prolonged and may result’in lower net sales and earnings. Equipment manufacturers,
in¢luding us, have responded to downtums in the past by reducing production and discounting product prices.
THese actions have resulted in restructuring charges and lower earnings for us in past affectcd periods. In the
event of future downtums, we may take similar actions.

O
0

r dependence on, and the price and availability of, raw materials and component parts may adversely affect
r profits.

We are exposed to fluctuations in market prices for commodities, such as steel and rubber, as well as

camponent parts, including engines. In recent years, the prices of various raw materials and component parts
have increased significantly, and we have been unable to avoid exposure to global price fluctuations and supply
lithitations, such as occurred in 2005, 2006 and 2007 with the cost and availability of steel and related products.

n

addition, our products are designed to work with particular components. As a result, our products, in certain
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cases, rely on a single source of supply for certain components. If we are unable to purchase the raw materials
d components we require or are unable to pass on price increases to our customers, our future profitability may
be adversely affected.

e construction and agricultural industries in which we operate are competitive, and competitors’ offerings of
new products or Services or lower prices could result in a decrease in our net sales and earnings.

We compete with global full-line suppliers (including Caterpillar Inc., Deere & Company, Case
nstruction Equipment and Komatsu Ltd.) with a presence in every market and a broad range of products as
ell as with product line specialists (including Oshkosh Corporation (JLG), Doosan Infracore Intemational
(Bobcat) and Takeuchi Mfg. Co. Lid.). Some of our competitors are larger than us and have greater financial,
anufacturing, marketing and distribution resources. Competitive pricing, product initiatives and other actions
tdken by our competitors could cause us to lose customers or force us to decrease our sales prices, resulting in
lgwer net sales and eamings.

e source some of our products from third parties and any interruption in the supply of these products could
versely affect our profitability.

We source compact excavators, all-wheel-steer loaders and compact track loaders from third-party foreign
suppliers. Any interruption in the supply of these products or any material increase in prices could adversely
affect our net sales and profitability. We are exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to the prices of these
ucts. Any material change in the value of the United States doliar versus other currencies could adversely
pact our profitability.

ur success depends in part on the introduction of new products, and the failure to introduce new products on a
ely basis conld adversely affect our net sales and profitability.

Qur long-term results depend upon our ability to secure, introduce and market new products successfully.
ur success in this area will depend on a number of factors, including our ability to develop new products
intemally or source new products from third-party suppliers, product quality, competition, customer acceptance
f new products and the strength of our dealer networks. Any difficulties in developing or identifying and
urcing new products, any manufacturing delays or problems with new product launches, or any increased
arranty costs from new products could adversely affect our operating results. The introduction of new products
uld also result in a decrease in revenues from our existing products. The intenal development and refinement
products also consumes a substantial amount of capital. We may need more capital for product development
d refinement than is available to us, which could adversely affect our net sales and profitability.

‘yelical and structural declines in the demand for products we offer may cause us to undertake product line and
cility rationalization initiatives that could result in restructuring charges and lower net sales and earnings.

The construction and agricultural industries are continually evolving and undergoing cyclical and
ructural changes that impact the demand for the products we offer. We have historically reviewed these
clical and structural changes in demand and have taken action to rationalize our product offerings and
roduction facilities in light of market conditions. We expect to continue these reviews and to take appropriate
ction based on future conditions. Those actions could result in resiructuring charges and lower net sales and
amings.

During March 2006, we decided to discontinue the manufacturing and distribution of our agricultural
plement products. As a result, we recorded a $5.9 million after-tax non-cash impairment charge related to
gricultural implement field and factory inventory and certain property, plant and equipment and a $2.2 million
fler-tax cash charge related to severance and other termination costs. Of the charge, $0.3 million and $7.8
illion was recorded in 2007 and 2006, respectively. Sec “Part Il, [tem 7. Management’s Discussion and
nalysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations — Discontinued Operations.” If we incur additional
nanticipated expenses associated with the discontinuation of our implement product Jine, then our net income
dould be adverscly affected in future periods.




Our|leverage could adversely affect our financial health and make us vulnerable to adverse economic and
indistry conditions,

At times, we may incur indebtedness that is substantial relative to our shareholders’ equity. Qur

indebtedness has important consequences. For example, it could:

. make it difficult for us to fulfill our obligations under our credit agreement,

. make it more challenging for us 10 obtain additional financing to fund our business strategy, debt
service requirements, capital expenditures and working capital;

. increase our vulnerability to interest rate changes and general adverse cconomic and industry
conditions;
. require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service

indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of cash flow to fund working capital, capital
expenditures, research and development efforts and other general corporate aclivities;

. limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and markets; and
. place us at a competitive disadvantage relative to our competitors that have less debt.

In addition, our credit facility requires us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy certain financial

condition tests, which may require that we take action to reduce our debt or te act in a manner contrary o our

We

IonItcrm business objectives.

re subject to risks and associated changes in the business climate that could limit our access to capital.

Our business is capital intensive and the fulfillment of our strategic plan depends, at least in part, upon our

abiljty to access capital at attractive rates and terms. If access to capital becomes significantly constrained

bec
cou

exp

ause of changes in the business climate or other factors, then our results of operations and financial condition
d be significantly adversely affected.

Welare subject to significant environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and related compliance
E’ ty

nditures and liabilities.

We are subject to various laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment and human

hea

th and safety and have incurred and will continue to incur capital and other expenditures to comply with

thede regulations. If we fail to comply with any environmental regulations, then we could be subject to future
liabilitis, fines or penalties or the suspension of production at our manufacturing facilities. If unexpected
obl{gations at these or other sites or more stringent environmental laws are imposed in the future, our future
profitability may be adversely affected.

1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

The Company has no unresolved staff comments to report pursuant to ltem 1B.



Item 2. Properties

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2007, related to the Company's
manufacturing facilities. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operalions- Liquidity and Capital Resources- Capital Expenditures,” included in Part 11, ltemn 7 of this Form 10-K.

Approximate
Floor Area in Owned or
Square Feet Leased Principal Uses
West Bend, W1 481,000 Owned Corporate offices, engineering,
research and development,
distribution of products
manufactured by third parties,
and former manufacturing
facility for agricultural
implements
Madison, SD 260,000 Qwned Manufacture of skid loaders and
distribution of track loaders and
attachments
Yankton, SD 215,900 Owned Manufacture of telescopic

handlers and asphalt pavers

The Company alse has a 32 month renewable service agreement with a vendor for a centralized parts
distribution center Jocated in Belvidere, lllinois, a 60 month operating lease for a warehouse and distribution facility
in Madison, South Dakota, and an 18 month operating lease for a storage facility in Madison, South Dakota. In
addition, the Company has operating leases for sales offices in Minnesota and Wisconsin and for a sales and
distribution facility in Germany.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is a defendant from time to time in actions for product liability and other matters arising out of
its ordinary business operations. The Company believes that the actions presently pending will not have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. To the Company's knowledge, there are
no material legal proceedings to which any director, officer, affiliate or more than 5% shareholder of the Company
(or any associate of the foregoing persons) is a party adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or has a
material interest adverse to the Company or its subsidiaries.




Item[d. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Execpitive Officers of the Registrant

2008

Namp. Ape and Position

Wwill D. Gehl, 61,
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chi¢f Executive Officer

Malgolm F. Moore, 57,
President and Chief Operating Officer

Tho M. Rettler, 47,
Vite President and Chief Financial
Officer

Dan‘rcl M. Keyes, 19,
Vige President, Sales and Marketing

Danjel L. Miller, 49,
Vige President, Manufacturing
Opgrations

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2007.

Set forth below is certain information concerning the executive officers of the Company as of February |,

Business Experience

Mr. Gehl has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company sincc April, 1996 and as Chief Exccutive Officer of the
Company since November, 1992. Mr. Gehl served as President of the
Company from November, 1992 10 April 2003 and has served as a
director of the Company since 1987,

Mr, Moore joined the Company as Executive Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer in August, 1999. Mr. Moore was elected President
and Chief Operating Officer in April, 2003. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Moore served in a variety of executive positions in
marketing, engineering, and general management with FMC
Corporation, General Signal Corporation, Merrill Lynch Capital
Corporation, and Ruhrgas Industries, GmbH. Mr. Moore is also a
director of Twin Disc, Inc., a leading designer, manufacturer and
distributor of power transmission equipment.

Mr. Rettler joined the Company as Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer in August 2004, Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Retiler
served as Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer for
WICOR Industries, Inc. (WICOR), 8 manufacturing subsidiary of
Wisconsin Energy Corporation, from 2003 to July, 2004, Mr. Rettler
was also Vice President, Finance for $ta-Rite Industries, Inc., a
subsidiary of WICOR, from 1999 to 2003,

Mr. Keyes joined the Company as Vice President Sales and Marketing in
December 2000. Frem 1996 until joining the Company, Mr. Keyes held
a variety of senior marketing management positions, most recently,
Director, Stratcgic Accoums, with CNH Global NV, a manufacturer of
agricultural and construction equipment,

Mr. Miller joined the Company as Director of Manufacturing Cperations
in October, 2001, Mr. Miller was appointed Vice President,
Manufacturing Operations in December, 2005. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Miller held a variety of management positions in
manufacturing and distribution, most recently General Manager of
Distribution and Logistics from 1999 to 2001 and Operations Manager
of multiple facilities for Woods Equipment Company, a manufacturer of
agricultural, turf and construction equipment.




Name, Age and Position

James J. Monnat, 52,
Vice President and Treasurer

Michael J. Mulcahy, 61,
Vice President, Secretary and General
Counsel

Brian L. Pearlman, 40,
Vice President, Human Resources

Busines tience

Mr. Monnat joined the Company as Treasurer and Director of Tax in
January, 2005, and was appointed Treasurer in July, 2005. Mr. Monnat
was appointed Vice President and Treasurer in April, 2007. Prior to
joining the Company, Mt. Monnat served as Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer of WE Power, LLC, a Wisconsin Encrgy Corporation
subsidiary responsible for the design, development and construction of
additional electric power generation in the State of Wisconsin, from
December, 2001 to September, 2004, Mr. Monnat was an independent
financial consultant during 2001. Mr. Monnat was Treasurer of WICOR,
Inc., a Milwaukee-based utility holding company, from 1998 to 2000.

Mr. Mulcahy has served as General Counsel of the Company since 1974
and became Secretary in 1977 and a Vice President in 1986. Mr.
Mulcahy has served as President of Equipco Insurance Company, Ltd. {(a
liability insurance carrier for equipment manufacturers, including the
Company) since 1988. Mr. Mulcahy is a member of the American
Corporate Counsel Association and the American and Wisconsin Bar
Associations,

Mr. Pearlman joined the Company as Vice President, Human Resources
in July 2007, Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Pearlman served as
Director of Human Resources for Cessna Aircraft Company, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Textron Inc., a diversified manufacturer with
interests in aircrafl, industrial and automotive products, fastening
systems and finance, from June, 2006 through April, 2007. Mr.
Pearlman served as Vice President of Human Resources for E-Z-GO, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Textron Inc. from February, 2004 through
August, 2006, Prior to February 2004, Mr. Pearlman held various
positions with Textron Golf, Turf and Specialty Products including, most
recently, Six Sigma Lead from February, 2002 to February, 2004.

All officers of the Company are clected annually by the Board of Directors following the Annual Mecting of
Shareholders. The Company has an employment agreement with William D. Gehl, pursuant to which he is to serve
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company through the expiration of the agreement on June 14, 2008.




PART 11

Item) 5. Market for Repistrant's Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

On October 26, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan providing for the
repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of the Company's outstanding common stock in open market or privately
negqtiated transactions. All treasury stock acquired by the Company will be cancelled and returned to the status of
authprized but unissued shares. The plan does not have an expiration date. As of December 31, 2007, a total of
123,600 shares had been repurchased. The Company’s Board of Directors terminated the previous plan which was
authprized in September 2001. The Company had repurchased an aggregate of 227,850 shares of the 500,000
authprized shares under the previous plan.

Number of

Shares Maximum Number

Number of Average Purchased as of Shares that May

Shares Price Paid  Panofa Publicly  Yet Be Purchased

As of December 31, 2007 Purchased per Share Announced Plan Under the Plan

October — November - $ - - 1,000,000
December 123,600 16.69 123,600 876,400
Total 123,600 5 1669 123,600 876,400

On July 22, 2005, the Company declared a three-for-two common stock split in the form of a 50% stock
diviflend with a record date of August 10, 2005, and a payment date of August 24, 2005. The purpose of the stock
diviflend was to create additional market liquidity for the Company’s common stock and, thus, enhance shareholder
. The information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been adjusted to reflect the stock split.

The Company's common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “GEHL." A

5 ary of the high and low prices of Geh!’s common stock by quarter, as reported by the Nasdaq Global Select
Market, follows:
Price Range
2007 2006

First Quarter $ 24.02-29.99 $ 25.90-35.05

Second Quarter 24.27-31.671 22.16-40.73

Third Quarter 19.87-33.17 22.43-29.17

Fourth Quarter 15.50-23.19 25.81-30.75

Year 3 1550-33.17 $ 22.16-40.73

The Company did not declare or pay any cash dividends in 2007 or 2006 and docs not anticipate paying any
cash dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future. As of February 19, 2008, sharehotders of record
nurjbered 389,




Performance Information

The following graph compares the cumulative total return (change in stock price plus reinvested
vidends) of the Common Stock with the Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Index and the Standard & Poor’s
all Cap Construction and Farm Machinery Index. The graph assumes $100 was invested on December 31,
D02 in each of the three altematives, and that all dividends were reinvested.

e

)

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Market Performance
Among S&P 500 Index, S&P Small Cap Construction and Farm Machinery Index, and the
Company
(Assumes $100 invested December 31, 2002 with dividends reihyested)

$525.00
$450.00
$375.00
$300.00 1
$225.00 3
$150.00
$75.00 1
50.00 1 L) ) 1 1 1
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
——S &P 500 ——5 & P SCCF MACH . —a— GEHL
December December December December December December
3t, 2002 31, 2003 31, 2004 31, 2005 31, 2006 31, 2007
S&P Composite 500 $100.00 $128.69 $142.69 $149.70 $173.33 $182.85
&P Small Cap
(Jonstruction and Farm .. )
Machinery Index $100.00 $168.44 $225.64 $286.59 $386.26 $486.69
Gehl $100.00 $162.30 $267.97 $451.78 $471.81 $276.23




Iterr] 6. Selected Financial Data

Five Yqar Financial Summary

Dollars in Thousands, Except Fer Share Data 2007 2006 2008 2004 2003
Summary of Operations

Net sale § 457,612 $ 486,217 $ 446,959 $ 325,237 $ 211,828
Gross prpfit 103,219 104,404 92,256 69,960 48,648
Income from operations 43,610 46,134 18.835 21,739 5910
Income from continuing operations before income 37,349 42,868 331,356 21,016 4,378
taxes

Income {rom continuing operations 24,949 28,078 22,138 14,077 3,296
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (542) (8,571) (338) (690) (666)
Net incame 24 407 19,507 21,800 13,387 2,630
Financigl Position at December 31

Current pssets $ 316,120 $ 291,033 $ 286902 $ 258,264 $ 148,194
Current fiabilitics 108,559 89,504 74,296 89,159 58,603
Working capital 207,561 201,529 212,606 169,105 89,591
Accounts receivable — net 190,439 187,582 158,695 102,907 69,082
Financefcontracts receivable — net 4,675 8,371 34,524 76,524 4,528
Inventoties 49,093 48,649 39,121 32,017 23,294
Assets of discontinued operations — net 262 3,783 28,045 33,771 37952
Property, plant and equipment ~ n2t 35,510 32,413 29,923 27,815 29,059
Total aspets 407,962 365,110 348,172 308,200 194,068
Long-tefm debt 21,425 25,183 52,069 69,467 26,538
Tosal dght 71,637 50,454 54946 89,843 26,724
Shnrt:Iiers' equity 261,030 230,781 208,493 136,461 98,000
Commdgn Share Summary

Diluted fncome per share from continuing $§ 200 § 226 § 200 $ 154 0§ 04
operatians:

Basic income per share from continuing operations: 2.05 233 2.09 1.59 0.41
Dividerds per share —_ — —_ —_ —
Book v3lue per share at year-end 21.52 18.92 17.36 13.74 12.25
Shares gutstanding at year-end 12,127,623 12,197,037 12,006,527 9,931,823 8,000,159
Other Financiel Statistics

Capital pxpenditures $ 6364 $ 6447 $ 1575 $ 3,669 S 3,034
Current|ratio 29101 33w! 3910t 29w} 25101
Percenttotal debt to total capitalization 2L.5% 17.9% 20.9% 39.7% 21.4%
Income|from continuing operations as a percent of 5.5% 5.8% 5.0% 4.3% 1.6%
nel saleg

Afler-1ax continuing aperations return on average 10.1% 12.8% 12.8% 12.0% 4%
sharchalders® equity

Emplo at year-end 848 855 982 9208 796
Commqn stock price range 15.50-33.17 22.16-40.73 14.03-3453 9.01 - 18.60 5.01-1089
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

The Company's net sales in 2007 of $457.6 million were $28.6 million, or 6%, below the 2006 net sales of
$486.2 million. The Company’s performance continued (o be strong despite weakness in the domestic residential
construction market, driven by continued market share gains, the value of foreign currencies relative 1o the U.S.
dollar, and the underlying strength of the intemmational construction markets during 2007.

Income from operations in 2007 was $43.6 million, or 9.5% of net sales, compared with 2006 income from
operations of $46.1 million, or 9.5% of net sales.

Income from continuing operations in 2007 was $24.9 million, or $2.00 per diluted share, compared with
$28.1 million, or $2.26 per diluted share in 2006,

The Company’s total assets increased to $407.3 million at December 31, 2007 from $365.1 million at
December 31, 2006, and iotal outstanding debt increased to $71.6 million at December 31, 2007 from $50.5 million
at December 31, 2006. Both increases are primarily due to increased retained interest in finance contracts sold
through the Company’s sccuritization program. l

Discontinued Operations

In March 2006, the Company decided to discontinue the manufacturing and distribution of its agricultural
implement products. The agricultural implement business included one manufacturing facility and related
manufacturing machinery and equipment. The reduction in headcount totaled 140 employees, which included both
manufacturing and administrative positions related to the agricultural implement business. As a result of this action,
the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes have been restated to present the results of the agricultural
implement product line as discontinued operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the discontinuation of the agricultural implement product line was concluded
and resulted in an after-tax charge to the Company’s camings for the ycar ended December 31, 2007 of $0.3 million,
or $0.02 per diluted share which included additional employee severance and related benefits costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2006 the discontinuation of the agricultural implement product line resulted
in an after-tax charge of $7.8 million, or $0.63 per diluted share. The cumulative after-tax charge is comprised of
non-cash asset impairment charges of $5.9 million related 1o agricultural implement field and factory inventory and
certain property, plant and equipment, and cash charges related to severance and other employee termination costs
of $2.2 million.

The Company has reflected the results of its agricultural implements product line as discontinued operations
in the Consolidated Statements of Income and 2005 resulis have been restated. Summary results of operations for
the agricultural implements product line were as follows (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Net sales 5 150 $ 10489 $ 31,255
Pretax loss from discontinued
operations b (383) $ (1,190 5 (525)
Pretax loss on disposal of
discontinued operations 429) (11,996) -
Income tax benefit 270 4,615 187
Loss from discontinued operations s (542) $  (8,571) 3 (338)
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The asscts of the agricultural implements product line are reflected as net assets of discontinued operations in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006

Accounts receivable, net s 152 S 1,3
Inventories - 587
Property, plant, and equipment, net 110 1,865
Assels of discontinued operations, net 3 262 $ 1,783

In the three month period ended September 30, 2007, the Company reclassified property, plani and equipment
totaling $1.3 million from assets of discontinued operations 1o property, plant and equipment - net on the
Conksolidated Balance Sheets as the result of a decision to renovate a discontinued manufacturing facility for use as a
future research and development facility.

Sto¢k Repurchase Plan

On October 26, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan providing for the
repyrchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock in open market or privately
negptiated transactions. All treasury stock acquired by the Company will be cancelled and returned to the status of
authorized but unissued. The plan does not have an expiration date. As of December 31, 2007, a total of 123,600
shafes had been repurchased. The Company's Board of Dircctors terminated the previous plan which was
autorized in September 2001. The Company had repurchased an aggregate of 227,850 shares of the 500,000
authorized shares under the previous plan.

Results of Operations

20007 vs. 2006
NetlSales

Net sales for 2007 were $457.6 million compared to $486.2 million in 2006, a decrease of $28.6 million, or
6%)| The Company’s performance continued to be strong despite weakness in the domestic residential construction
market, driven by continued market share gains, the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar, and the
underlying strength of the intenational construction markets during 2007. Demand for the Company’s skid loaders
wad strong as total shipments of skid loaders increased 5% from 2006, including shipments of skid loaders by the
Company's European subsidiary, Gehl Europe. Sales outside of the United States were $131.0 million, or 29% of
totd) company sales, in 2007, an increase of 31% versus the same period in 2006. Skid loader shipments outside of
the[U.S. represented 44% of 1otal company skid loader shipments in 2007, up from 34% in the prior year.

While industry retail demand in North America fell over 8% for skid loaders and 28% for telescopic handlers,
the[Company’s retail performance continued to reflect market share gains as its skid loader retail settlements fell
only 3% and its telescopic handler retail activity declined only 9%. Decreased demand for compact track loaders
and compact excavators during 2007 resulted in sales decreases from 2006 of 27% and 17%, respectively. Sales by
the[Company's attachment subsidiary, CE Attachments, Inc. were flat compared 10 2006. Partially offsetting the
shipment information noted above, approximately 3.4 percentage poims of the net sales increase was due 10 price
increases during 2006 and 2007.

Of the Company's total net sates reported for 2007, $131.0 million, or 29%, were made to customers located
outside of the United States compared with $100.2 million, or 21% in 2006.

Gross Profit

Graoss profit was $103.2 million in 2007 compared to $104.4 million in 2006, a decrease of $1_2 million, or
194. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales (“gross margin™) was 22.6% for 2007 compared to 21.5% for 2006.
Gross margin in 2007 was favorably impacted by approximately 2.5 percentage poinis due to 2006 and 2007 price
incfeases and approximately 1.2 percentage points due to decreases in the cost of steel and component parts. These

17




favorable impacts were partially offset by the impact of changes in product and customer mix (approximately 2.2
bercentage points), currency adjustments on foreign sourced products (approximately 0.2 percentage points) and
slightly lower plant efficiencies and increased overhead spending (approximately 0.2 percentage points).

Belling, Generai and Administrative Expenses

Selling, generat and administrative expenses were $59.6 million, or 13% of net sales, for 2007 compared to
$58.3 million, or 12% of net sales, for 2006. The increase in spending is the result of planned incremental spending
jn research and devetopment and information technology projects which totaled $2.5 million in 2007. In addition,
Hue to the weakening North American economy, the Company recorded an increase of $3.7 million in bad debt
Feserves on its non-securitized finance contract portfolio. These increases in spending were partially offset by items
that vary with sales levels.

Income from tions

Income from operations for 2007 was $43.6 million, or 9.5% of net sales, compared to income from ‘
operations of $46.1 million, or 9.5% of net sales, for 2006, a decrease of $2.5 million, or 5%. The decrease in

income from operations is primarily due to the planned incremental spending in research and development and

information technology projects as the 6% decrease in net sales from 2006 was mostly offset by the increase in gross

margin to 22.6% from 21.5% in 2006. As a percentage of net sales, income from operations remained flat at 9.5%

despite the planned incremental spending,

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $4.7 million for 2007 compared to $3.6 million for 2006, an increase of $1.1 million, or
29%. The increase in interest expense was due to an increase in the average outstanding debt during 2007 compared
to 2006. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a discussion of changes in cutstanding debt.

Interest Income

Interest income was $3.9 million for 2007 compared to $4.3 million for 2006, a decrease of $0.4 million, or
%%. The decrease in interest rates throughout 2007, as well as higher utilization of programs offering low rate
financing or extended terms was partially offset by an increased average balance of accounts receivable and finance
contracts receivable compared to 2006. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources™ below for a discussion of the
changes in the balance of finance contracts receivable and accounts receivable.

ther Expense, net

The Company recorded net other expense of $5.5 million and $3.9 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The increase in net other expense was primarily due to $0.3 million of foreign currency gains recorded during 2007
compared to $0.8 million of foreign currency gains recorded in 2006. In addition, the company recorded an increase
in expected losses within the sccuritized finance contract portfolio as a result of the weakening North Amenican
economy, of $2.6 million. See notes 5 and 12 in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company’s cffective income tax rate was 33.2% in 2007 and 34.5% in 2006. The dccrease in the
effective tax rate was primarily due to a $0.9 million increase in the Domestic Manufacturing Deduction due to 2
rate increase from 3% to 6% and a $0.2 million increase in the rescarch and development credit as a result of the
increased spending discussed above. In addition, the Company reduced the valuation allowance related to state net
operating losses by $0.5 million in 2007.

ncome from Continuin rations

Income from continuing operations in 2007 was $24.9 million, or 5.5% of net sales, compared to income
from continuing operations of $28.1 million, or 5.8% of net sales, in 2006, a decrease of $3.1 million, or § 1%.
Diluted income per share from continuing operations were $2.00 in 2007 compared to $2.26 in 2006.
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Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

The Company recorded a loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $0.3 mitlion in 2007 compared o0 a
loss ffom discontinued operations, net of tax, of $0.8 million in 2006.

Loss pn Disposal of Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

The Company recorded a $0.3 million and $7.8 million loss on the disposal of discontinued operations, net of
tax, i9 2007 and 2006, respectively. Sce “Discontinued Operations” above for additional discussion.

Net [pcome

Net income was $24.4 million in 2007, or 5% of net sales, compared to net income of $19.5 million in 2006,
or 4% of net sales, an increase of $4.9 million, or 25%. The 2007 and 2006 net income included the $0.3 million and
$7.8 million loss on disposal of discontinued operations noted above. Diluted net income per share was $1.96 in
2007 compared to $1.57 in 2006. The 2007 net income includes the previously discussed $0.3 million or $0.02 per
dilutdd share loss on disposal of discontinued operations and the 2006 net income includes the previously discussed
$7.8 million, or $0.63 per diluted share, loss on disposal of discontinued operations,

2006 vs. 2005

Net sales for 2006 were $486.2 million compared to $447.0 million in 2005, an increase of $39.3 million, or
9%, Net sales, in general, were favorably impacted by market share gains and the solid fundamentals of the
Company’s global markets during 2006. Intenational demand for the Company's skid loaders was strong as total
shipments of skid loaders increased 5% from 2005, including shipments of skid loaders by the Company’s European
subsidiary, Gehl Europe. Telescopic handler shipments in 2006 increased 34% from 2005 as demand from larger
renta) customers rernained strong through most of 2006. These increases were partially offset by decreased demand
for cpmpact track loaders and compact excavators during 2006 that resulted in sales decreases from 2005 of 1% and
9%, fespectively. The Company’s attachment subsidiary, CE Attachments, Inc. increased sales 7% from 2005, In
addition to the increased shipments noled above, approximately 2.4 percentage points of the net sales increase was
due tp price increases during 2005 and 2006.

Of the Company’s total net sales reported for 2006, $100.2 million, or 21% were made to customers residing
outsige of the United States compared with $72.9 million, or 16% in 2005. The increase in export sales was
primarily due to increased sales in Europe.

Profit

Gross profit was $104.4 million in 2006 compared to $92.3 million in 2005, an increase of $12.1 mallion, or
13%]| Gross profit as a percentage of net sales (“gross margin™) was 21.5% for 2006 compared to 20.6% for 2005.
Gross margin in 2006 was favorably impacted by approximately 1.7 percentage points due to 2005 and 2006 price
incrases and approximately 1.1 percentage points due to improved plant efficiencies and reduced overhead
spenfling. These favorable impacts were partially offsct by the impact of changes in product mix (approximately 1.3
percentage points) and increases in the cost of steel and component parts (approximately 0.6 percentage points).

Selling, General and Administrativ nses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $58.3 million, or 12% of net sales, for 2006 compared 10
$53.4 million, or 12% of net sales, for 2005. The increase in spending is primarily the result of items that vary with
sales levels, as well as compensation expense of $1.1 million, or 0.2% of net sales, related to the expensing in 2006
of stpck-based awards pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 123R. Selling,
gendral and administrative expenses in 2006 also included a fourth quarter charge of $1.1 million for an accounts
recejvable reserve related to a customer account currently in collection. Selling, general and administrative
expqnses as a percentage of net sales remained flat in 2006 despite the fourth quarter accounts reccivable charge and
the gxpense recorded under FASB Statement No. 123R as the growth in net sales more than exceeded expense
increases.
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Income from Operations

Income from eperations for 2006 was $46.1 million, or 9.5% of net sales, compared to income from
pperations of $38.8 million, or 8.7% of net sales, for 2005, an increase of $7.3 million, or 19%. The increase in
ncome from operations is primarily due to the 9% increase in net sales from 2005 and the increase in gross margin
0 21.5% from 20.6% in 2005. The favorable impact of these increases was partially offset by an increase in selling,
Leneral, and administrative expenses including 2 $1.1 million accounts receivable reserve and $1.1 million of
expense related to stock based awards pursuant to FASB Statement No. 123R.

Intergst Expense

Interest expense was $3.6 million for 2006 compared to $5.5 million for 2005, a decrease of §1.8 million, or
33%. The decrease in interest expense was due to a decrease in the average outstanding debt during 2006 compared
10 2005. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a discussion of changes in outstanding debt.

Interest Income

Interest income was $4.3 million for both 2006 and 2005. The increase in accounts receivable and interest
rates throughout 2006 was offset by a decreased average balance of finance contracts receivable compared to 2005.
See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a discussion of the changes in the balance of finance contracts
receivable and accounts receivable.

Other Expense, net

The Company recorded net other expense of $3.9 million and $4.3 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The decrease in net other expense was primarily due to a $0.8 million decrease in costs incurred with the
implementation of the asset securitization programs that occurred during 2006 and 2005 as well as $0.8 million of
foreign currency gains recorded during 2006 compared to a minimal loss recorded in 2005. These impacts were
partially offset by a $1.4 million increase in the cost of selling finance contracts, which in 2005 included a $0.4
million realized gain on the termination of interest rate swap contracts the Company had previously put in place to
hedge the gain/loss on sale of finance contracts. Scc notes 5 and 12 in “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.” The Company sold $234.7 million of contracts during 2006 compared to $220.8 million during 2005.

Income from Coniinuing Operations

Income from continuing operations in 2006 was $28.1 million, or 5.8% of net sales, compared to income
from continuing operations of $22.1 million, or 5.0% of net sales, in 2005, an increase of $5.9 million, or 27%. The
2006 income from continuing operations includes the previously discussed accounts receivable pre-tax charge of
$1.1 million. Diluted income per share from continuing operations was $2.26 in 2006 compared to $2.00 in 2005.

Loss from Discontinued Operatigns, Net of Tax

The Company recorded a loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $0.8 million in 2006 compared to a
loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $0.3 million in 2005.

Loss on Disposal of Discontinued rations, Net of Tax

The Company recorded a $7.8 million loss on the disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax, in 2006.
See “Discontinued Operations™ above for additional discussion.

Net Income

Net income was $19.5 million in 2006, or 4% of net sales, compared to net income of 321.8 million in 2005,
or 5% of net sales, a decrease of $2.3 million, or 11%. The 2006 net income included the $7.8 million loss on
disposal of discontinued operations noted above. Diluted net income per share was $1.57 in 2006 compared to
$1.97 in 2005. The 2006 net income includes the previously discussed accounts receivable reserve charge after-tax
of $0.7 million, or $.06 per diluted share, and the $7.8 million, or $0.63 per diluted share, loss on disposal of
discontinued operations,
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Liquldhy and Capital Resources

Worlkding Capital

The Company’s working capital increased to $207.6 million at December 31, 2007 from $201.5 million
twelve months earlier. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in current retained interest in finance
contrcts receivable sold through the securitization program, offset, in part, by an increase in shori-term borrowings
as a result of a $25.0 million increase in the Company's commercial paper arrangement. See “Short-term
Borrgwings” for additional discussion.

The Company’s working capital decreased to $201.5 million at December 31, 2006 from $212.6 million
twelve months earlier. The decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in finance contracts receivable and assets
of digcontinued operations and an increase in short-term borrowings, offset, in part, by an increase in accounts
receiyable and inventories.

Accdunts Receivable and Inventories

The Company's accounts receivable increased $2.9 million to $190.4 million at December 31, 2007. The

e in accounts receivable was due to a higher percentage of total company net sales to national accounts which
longer terms. The Company's inventories increased $0.4 million to $49.1 million at December 31, 2007. The

se in inventories was primarily due to the timing of receipts and distribution of products manufactured by third
parties which are distributed by the Company.

The Company’s accounts receivable increased $28.9 million to $187.6 mitlion at December 31, 2006. The
incrdase in accounts receivable was due to the 9% increase in net sales during 2006, which was primarily driven by
strorjg demand for skid loaders and telescopic handlers. The Company’s inventories increased $9.5 million to $48.6
million at December 31, 2006. The increase in inventories was primarily due to the timing of receipts and
distribution of products manufactured by third parties which are distributed by the Company.

Finance contracts reccivable decreased $3.7 million to $4.7 million at December 31, 2007. The decreasc is
prinarily the result of an increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts in 2007 resulting from a decline in
finapcial market conditions from 2006. See “Off Balance Sheet Arrangements — Sales of Finance Contracts

Finance contracts receivable decreased $26.2 million 1o $8.4 million at December 31,2006. The Company \
¢n holding ineligible finance contracts for a sale under a new asset securitization program from the fourth

quafter of 2005 through February 2006. Upon finalizing the asset securitization program in March 2006, the

Corhpany began seiling the previously incligible contracts, as well as contracts originated after the inception of the

m, through the asset securitization program, which resulted in a decrease in the balance of finance contracts

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company began to issue commercial paper through a placement agent
to flind a portion of its short lerm working capital needs. The Company had the ability to selt up to $25.0 million in
commercial paper under this arrangement. In April 2007, this arrangement was expanded to give the Company the
ability to sell up to $50.0 million in commercial paper. The Company’s commercial paper program is backed by the
creflit commitment under the Company’s revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2007, the Company had $50.0
million of short term commercial paper outstanding at a rate of 5.07% compared to $25.0 million outstanding at
Degember 31, 2006 at a rate of 5.45%.
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(apital Expenditures

{3 thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Capital Expenditures $ 6364 $ 6,447 $ 7,575
Depreciation s 4572 $ 4,529 3 492]

The Company expended $6.4 million for property, plant and equipment in 2007, the majority of which was
incurred to expand the Yankton manufacturing facility and upgrade machinery and equipment. The Company plans

make up to $23.5 million in capital expenditures in 2008, including $7.7 million to complete the renovations and
quipment purchases for the research and development facility, $8.3 million to begin the first phases of a new office
wilding, and additional spending to enhance manufacturing and information technology capabilities and maintain
and upgrade machinery and equipment.

Debt and Equity
December 31, 2007 2006 2005
(3 millions)
Total Debt $ 76 $ 505 $ 549
Shareholders’ Equity § 261.0 $230.8 $208.5
% Total Debt to
Total Capitalization 21.5% 17.9% 20.9%

At December 31, 2007, sharcholders’ equity had increased $30.2 million to $261.0 mitlion from $230.8
million a year earlier. This increase primarily reflects the impact of the 2007 net income of $24.4 million, $4.7
million related to benefit plan adjustments, $0.7 million related to the exercise of stock options, $1.9 million related
t0 share based compensation and $1.8 million related vo currency translation. These increases were partially offset
by $2.3 million related to the repurchase of stock.

On October 26, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan providing for the
repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock in open market or privately
negotiated transactions. All wreasury stock acquired by the Company will be cancelled and returned to the status of
authorized but unissued. The plan does not have an expiration date. As of December 31, 2007, a total of 123,600
shares had been repurchased. The Company’s Board of Directors terminated the previous pian which was authorized
in September 2001, The Company had repurchased an aggregate of 227,850 shares of the 500,000 authorized shares
under the previous plan.

At December 31, 2006, shareholders' equity had increased $22.3 million to $230.8 million from $208.5
million a year earlier. This increase primarily reflects the impact of the 2006 net income of $19.5 million, $1.6
million related 10 the exercise of stock options, $1.6 million related to share based compensation and $1.1 million
related to currency translation, offset in part by an adjustment of $3.7 miltion for FASB No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R).”

Borrowing Arrangements

The Company maintains a $125 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) with a syndicate of
commercial bank lenders. The credit commitment under the Facility is for a five-year period expiring Cctober 17,
2011. Atany time during the term of the Facility, the Company has the option to request an increase in the credit
commitment under the Facility to $175 million from the current syndicate of commercial bank lenders or any other
commercial bank lender(s) selected by the Company. Under the terms of the Facility, the Company has pledged the
capital stock of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries which are atl co-borrowers. The Company may borrow up to $25
million under the Facility in a currency other than the U.S, Dollar, The Company may elect to pay interest on U.S.
Dollar borrowings under the Facility at a rate of cither (1) the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus
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0.625% 10 1.3750% or (2) s base rate defined as the prime commercial rate less 0.125% to 1.125%. The Company’s
actupl borrowing costs for LIBOR or base rate borrowings is determined by reference to a pricing grid based on the
Conlpany’s ratio of funded debt to total capitalization, Interest on amounts borrowed under the Facility in
curréncies other than the U.S. Dolar will be priced at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.625% to 1.375%. As of
Decémber 31, 2007, the weighted average interest rate on Company borrowings outstanding under the Facility was
5.998%. The Facility requires the Company to maintain compliance with certain financial covenants related to total
capilalization, interest expense coverage, tangible nct worth, capital expenditures and operating lease spending. The
Conjpany was in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2007

Borrowings under the Facility were $21.1 million at December 31, 2007 versus $24.7 million a year earlier.
Avajlable unused borrowings under the Facility were $53.9 million at December 31, 2007 versus $75.1 million a
yeai earlier. Available borrowings at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were reduced by 350.0 million and $25.0
milljon, respectively, of outstanding commercial paper as discussed in “Short-term Borrowings™ above.

In May 2006, the Company entered into a $10 million committed line of credit facility with a commercial
bank lender. Borrowings under this facility accrued interest at 1.15% above the LIBOR for 30 day deposits reset
monthly and are secured by a first priority lien on an assigned pool of retail finance contracts receivable. This

facility expired on Apnil 30, 2007.

In addition, the Company has access 10 a €2,5 million committed foreign short-term credit facility. There
wer no borrowings outstanding under this facility at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The Company believes it has adequate capital resources and borrowing capacity to meet its projected capital
reqliircments for the foreseeable future. Requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, pension fund
contributions and debt maturities in fiscal 2008 will continue to be funded by operations and the Company's

borfowing arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

A summary of the Company’s significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 are as follows (in
thousands):

=]

Total 2008 2009-2010 2011 -2012  After 2042
Contractual Cbligations:
Debt Obligations $ 71,637 § 5022 ¢§ 368 $ 21057 % -
Operating Leases 8,164 2,097 3,277 2,408 382

Projected Minimum Required
Pension Contributions 5,008 - 2,470 2,538 -
Total Contractual Obligations $ 84809 § 52309 § 6,115 $ 26003 § 382

Debt obligations do not include interest payments on the outstanding debt balance as the timing of such
payments cannot be reasonably estimated. In addition, required pension contributions have been included for
gertain periods but cannot be reasonably estimated beyond 2012 and management has not included its FIN 48
rbility costs as the timing of a payment, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated. As of December 31, 2007, $3.1
illion has been recorded as a FIN 48 liability. Refer to Note 10 of the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements - Sales of Finance Contracts Receivable

The sale of finance contracts is an important component of the Company's overall liquidity. In March 2006,
thk Company entered into an asset securitization facility (“the Securitization Facility”) with a financial institution
{the “Purchaser”) whereby the Company can sell, through a revolving securitization facility, up to $300 million of
refail and fleet installment sale contracts (“installmem sale contracts™ or “finance contracts receivable”). The
Sdcuritization Facility has a final maturity date in March 2009, subject 1o annual renewal by the Purchaser. Under
th Securitization Facility, the Company sells portfolios of its finance contracts receivable 10 a wholly-owned,
bdnkruptcy-remole special purpose subsidiary (“SPE™) which, in turn, sells each such portfolio to a wholly-owned
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bankruptcy-remote special purpose subsidiary of the SPE, The wholly-owned bankruptcy-remote special purpose
suljsidiary of the SPE sells a participating interest in each such portfalio of finance contracts receivable to the
haser {(approximately 73% of the discounted value of the finance contract receivable porifolio). The Purchaser
hag no recourse against the Company for uncollectible finance contracts receivable, if any; however, the Company's
retpined interest in the portfolio of finance contracts receivable is subordinate to the Purchaser’s interest, The
Seguritization Facility replaced the previous $150 million revolving securilization facility the Company terminated
in February 2006. The panicipating interest in finance contracts receivable that had been sold under the previous
seduritization facility was purchased by the Purchaser in March 2006. At December 31, 2007, the Company had
available unused capacity of $97.6 million under the Securitization Facility. As of December 31, 2007, due to
ening credit markets, the Company is operating under a reservation of rights agreement as it rencgotiates
fagility triggers within the agreement.

In addition to the Securitization Facility, the Company has arrangements with multiple financial institutions
to sell its finance contracts receivable with 5% limited recourse on the sold portfolio of finance contracts. The
Cdmpany continues to service substantially all contracts, whether or not sold. At December 31, 2007, the Company
sefviced $373.8 million of finance contracts receivable of which $277.8 million, $66.1 million and $9.6 million were
sold through the Securitization Facility, limited recourse arrangements and full recourse arrangements, respectively.
It {5 the intention of the Company to continue to selt substantially all of its existing as well as future finance
contracts receivable through an asset securitization program or limited recourse arrangements. The Company
believes that it will be able to arrange sufficient capacity to sell its finance contracts for the foreseeable future.

A¢counting Pronouncements

In Scptember 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Agcounting Standard No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, but does not change
eAisting guidance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years
bdginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB decided to issue a final Staff Position to allow a
e-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS
157 10 exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address leasing
nsactions. The Company is currently cvaluating the impact, if any, of implementing SFAS 157 on the
cgnsolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 159, “The Fair Value
tion for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to
easure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value, Unrealized gains and losses on items for
hich the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, of implementing SFAS
19 on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141{R) “Business Combinations”, which is a revision of
AS No. 141. SFAS 141(R) retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS No. 14] that the acquisition method of
apcounting be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination.
is statement includes changes in the measurement of fair value of the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
y noncontrolling interest in the acquiree as of the acquisition date, with limited exceptions. This statement
quires in general that transaction costs and costs to restructure the acquired company be expensed and contractual
ntingencics be recorded at their acquisition-date fair values. Companies are required to adopt the new standard
rospectively for fiscal periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact, if any, of this standard on the Conselidated Financial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB released Statement No. 160 (“SFAS 160™), “Noncontrolling Interests in
onsolidated Financial Statements,” an amendment of ARB No. 51, Under “SFAS No. 160,” consolidated financial
tatements will be presented as if the parent company investors (controlling interests) and other minority investors
on-controlling inlerests) in partially-owned subsidiaries have similar economic interests in a single entity. As a
sult, the investment in the non-controlling interest, previously recorded between liabilities and equity (the
mezzanine”), will be reported as equity in the parent company’s consclidated financial slatements, subsequent to
e adoption of SFAS No. 160. Furthermore, consolidated financial statements will include 100% of a controlled
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subsidiary’s eamings, rather than only the parent company's share. Lastly, transactions between the parent company
and gon-controlling interests will be reported in equity as transactions between shareholders, provided that these
transpctions do not create a change in control, Previously, acquisitions of additional interests in a controlled
subs{diary generally resulted in remeasurement of assets and liabilities acquired; dispositions of interests generally
resulted in a gain or loss. Muanagement is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 160 on the

any’s financial statements. Presently, there are no significant non-controlling interests in any of the

any’s consolidated subsidianies. Therefore, the Company is currently believes that the impact of SFAS No.

if any, will primarily depend on the materiality of non-controlling interests arising in future transactions,

ted FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. The impact of the adoption on the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statgments as of January 1, 2007, was an increase in total assets of $0.4 million, an increase in total liabilities of
$0.9 million and a decrease in shareholders’ equity of $0.5 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’
Accpunting for Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R)” ("SFAS No. 158"), which requires employers to fully recognize the obligations associated
with single-employer defined benefit pension, retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans in their financial
bments. In addition, SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure plan asscts and liabilities as of the end of a

1 year rather than a date within 90 days of the end of the fiscal year. The Company adopted SFAS No. 158
effective December 31, 2006, except for the change in measurement date provisions which are not effective until
2008. The impact of the adoption at December 31, 2006, was a decrease in total assets of $0.4 million, an increase in
tota) liabilities of $5.3 million and a decrease in shareholders’ equity, net of tax, of $3.7 million. The change in
medsurement date provision will be adopted effective January 1, 2008. The impact of the adoption will be an
incfease in total liabilities of $0.2 million, an increase in total assets of $0.1 miltion and a decrease in shareholders’
equity, net of 1ax, of $0.1 million.

ical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires the Company to make ¢stimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net sales and expenses. The Company bases its

ilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions and materially impact the carrying value of the assets and liabilities. The
mpany believes the following accounting policies are critical to the Company’s business operations and the
unchrstanding of the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

Allowance fi tful Account

The Company’s accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that may be uncollectible in the
futpre. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a specific customer's inability to meet its financial

er than expected defaults or an unexpected material adverse change in a major cuslomer's ability to meet its
cial obligations), estimates of the recoverability of amounts due could be reduced by a material amount.
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lhventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is determined using the last-in, first-out

(LIFQ) method for the majority of the Company’s inventories. In valuing inventory, management is required to

ake assumptions regarding the level of reserves required to value potentially obsolete or slow moving items to the

lower of cost or market value. Inventory reserves are established taking into account inventory age and frequency of
e or sale. While calculations are made involving these factors, significant management judgment regarding

ekpectations for future events is involved. Future events that could significantly influence management's judgmem

ahd related estimates include general economic conditions in markets where the Company's products are sold, as

ell as new products and design changes introduced by the Company.

I

ccrued Warranty

The Company establishes reserves related to the warranties provided on its products. Specific reserves are
aintained for programs related to known machine safety and reliability issues. When establishing specific reserves,
%ﬁmates are made regarding the size of the population, the type of program, costs to be incurred and estimated
rticipation. Additionally, general reserves are maintained based on the historical percentage relationships of
warranty costs to machine sales and applied to current equipment sales. If these estimates and related assumptions
hange, reserve levels may require adjustment,

(r)

I

vcerued Product Liability

The Company records a general reserve for potential product liability claims based on the Company's prior
aim experience and specific reserves for known product liability claims. Specific reserves for known claims are
lued based upon the Company's prior claims experience, including consideration of the jurisdiction, circumstances
f the accident, type of loss or injury, identity of plaintiff, other potential responsible parties, analysis of outside
unsel, and analysis of internal product liability counsel. Actual product liability costs could be different due to a
mber of variables, including decisions of juries or judges.

oodwill |

In connection with SFAS No, 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company is required to
erform goodwill impairment reviews, at least annually, using a fair-value-based approach. The Company performs
ils annual impairment review as of December 31. As part of the annual impairment review, an estimate of the fair
alue of the Company, primarily by using a discounted cash flow analysis, is performed. Significant assumptions
sed in this analysis include: expected future revenue growth rates, operating profit margins, working capital levels
nd a weighted average cost of capital. Changes in assumptions could significantly impact the estimate of the fair
alue of the Company, which could result in a goodwill impairment charge and could have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Pension and postretirement benefit costs and obligations are dependent on assumptions used in calculation of
ese amounts. These assumptions include discount rates, expected return on plan assets for funded plans, rate of
lary increases, health care cost trend rates, mortality rates and other factors. In accordance with accounting
rinciples generally accepted in the United States, actual results that differ from the actuarial assumptions are
ccumulated and amortized to future periods and therefore affect recognized expense and recorded obligations in
ture periods. While the Company believes that the assumptions used are appropriate, differences in actual
experience or changes in assumptions may materially effect its financial position or results of operations.
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Retained _Interest Valuation

The valuation of retained interest in finance contracts sold through the Company's Securitization Facility is
dependent on several assumptions used in the modeling of the valuation. These assumptions include the discount
rate, pxpected prepayments and delinquencics, estimated unused fees, future advance rates, future interest costs,
expe¢ted losses and estimated future net service fee income. The valuation of the retaincd interest is completed
quarterly in compliance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extiriguishments of Liabilities.” While the Company believes that the assumptions used are appropriate, differences
in actual experience or changes in assumptions may materially effect its financial position or results of operations.

2008/ Outlook

The Company doces not anticipate that North American housing conditions will improve appreciably in 2008,
Whilk the Company anticipates continued growth in the international markets, current forecasts anticipate that the
North American compact equipment markets will decline 10% to 30% in 2008, varying by product category. The
Company’s backlog as of February 22, 2008 of $95.9 million was up $56.3 million, or 142%, from the December
31, 2007 backlog level of $19.6 million.

Based on current 2008 market forecasts, current Company backlog position, new product acceptance rate,
targefed market share gains and field inventory adjusiments, the Company expects 2008 net sales 10 be in the range
of $405 million to $425 million. The Company intends to continue to reduce North American field inventory levels
in 2008 to position dealer inventory levels in advance of new product introductions in 2009, Gross margin in 2008
is expected to decline due to a change in product mix, increasing commodity costs, primarily steel, and lower
prodgction volumes compared to 2007. In addition, operating expenses will increase due fo planned incremental
investments in product research and development, information technology projects and programs designed to
enhafce dealer communication totaling approximately $3.2 million. The Company expects income per share from
contihuing operations of $0.95 to $1.20 in 2008. The Company anticipates generating operating cash flow of $40
millipn to $60 million driven by decreases in field and factory inventory.

ltemL'IA. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates as well as fluctuations in currency. See
furthr disclosure relating to variable rate debt under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Results of
Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources — Borrowing Arrangements” included in ftem 7 of this Form 10-K.

Intexest Rate Risk
The Company's exposure to interest rates relates primarily to owtstanding floating variable rate borrowings

that price off shart-term market interest rates and the Company's retained interest in securitized finance contracts
receivable.

The Company's Facility is primarily LIBOR-based and is subject to interest rate changes. In order to manage
interest rate exposures that result from floating rate debt, the Company entered into, in the fourth quarnier of 2005, an
interpst rate swap agreement with a major financial institution to exchange variable rate interest obligations for fixed
rate ¢bligations without the exchange of the underlying principal amounts. Effective January 2006, under this
agre¢ment, the Company’s variable to fixed rate obligations are an aggregate swapped notional amount of $40
millipn through January 2008. The aggregate notional amount of the swap decreases to $30 million effective
Janugry 2008, $20 million effective January 2009, $10 million effective January 2010 and expires in January 2011.
The Company pays a 4.89% fixed interest rate under the swap agreement and receives a 30 day LIBOR variable
rate. | The reference 30 day LIBOR rate was 4.60% at December 31, 2007.
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The variable to fixed interest rate swap is an effective cash-flow hedge to the extent of its notional amount.
Ttle fair value of the swap is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, with changes in fair value included in
other comprehensive income (loss). Swap gains or losses included in other comprehensive income (loss) are
reclassified into eamings at the time the related interest expense is recognized or settlement of the obligation occurs.
Al 10% increase or decrease in the average cost of the Company’s variable rate debt would result in a change in pre-
interest expense of approximately $0.4 mitlion based on borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2007.

In connection with the Company’s Securitization Facility, the Company and the SPE are parties to interest
e swap agreements to manage the SPE’s interest rate exposure from floating rate debt. The term and notional
b3lances of the swap agreements are matched to the anticipated repayment profile of the aggregate portfolio of
sdcuritized finance contracts. Effective December 31, 2007, the Company’s variable to fixed rate obligations arc an
gate swapped notional balance of $267.0 million decreasing over time to $0 by December 31, 2013. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company pays 2 fixed rate of 5.015% under the swaps (which adjusts monthly) and
ceives a 30 day LIBOR variable rate. The reference 30 day LIBOR rate was 4.63% at December 31, 2007. The
swaps are deemed ineffective under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
dging Activities.” Accordingly, changes in fair value are recognized in eamings each period as part of the
mpany's retained interest valuation. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s retained interest calculation was
rdduced by $5.4 million as a result of the swap liability.

The Company’s retained interest calculation is based on the present value of estimated future cash fiows
ich is affected by interest paid on the underlying capital advance. A 10% increase or decrease in the average cost
" the SPE’s floating rate capital advance would result in a pre-tax change in the valuation of the Company’s
rd1ained interest of approximately $1.4 million based on the total portfolio of securitized finance contracts at
Olecember 31, 2007.

[=]

Commodity Risk

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in market prices for commodities, especially steel. The Company
has established arrangements to manage the negotiations of commodity prices and, where possible, (o limit near-
t¢rm exposure to fluctuations in certain raw material prices.

Currency Risk

The Company has limited exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations. Certain sales are made in
nadian dollars; however, to minimize this exposure, the Company borrows in Canadian dollars under the Facility.
e Company purchases certain inventory components and finished goods from suppliers in Europe and Japan. Te
the extent the U.S. dollar strengthens or weakens against the Euro or the Yen, the Company’s purchase price could
affected under risk shating mechanisms in certain supply agreements, From time to time the Company has
efitered into contracts to hedge a portion of its currency risk associated with supply agreements which do not contain
clrrency risk sharing mechanisms.

In September 2007, the Company entered into a series of forward currency contracts (“forward contracts”) to
hedge a portion of the Company's exposure to changes in the value of the U.S Dollar versus the Euro as a result of
ro denominated purchase commitments. The forward contracts expire between June 16, 2008 and December 15,
208 and have a notional amount of €6.0 million ($8.4 million) and contract rates ranging from €1.0:$1.4003 to
0:51.4014. As the contracts are deemed ineffective under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
erivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the Company recorded a current liability and an increase to other
pense of $0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Mazanagement’s Annua) Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
ancial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f} and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance
w{th accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Because of its inherent limitations, interna) control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
mjsstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls
y become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
prpcedures may detcriorate,

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial

rting as of December 31, 2007 using the criteria set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, the

airman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

{s/ Thoma Rettler
Thomas M. Rettler

Wice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the|Board of Directors and Shareholders of Gehl Company:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
materipl respects, the financial position of Gehl Company and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the respalts of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our
opinioj, the financial statement schedule fisted in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects,
the inflormation set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also
in ourlopinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
ecember 31, 2007, based on criteria established in internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is
sible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control
nancial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal contro! over financial reporting,

d in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
sibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the
ny's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in
ance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those

rds require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
ents are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
ined in all matcrial respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis,

ce supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
nd significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
dit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
ial reporting, nssessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
ing effectiveness of intemal conirol based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such
other|procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
for our opinions.

As described in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which
it acdounts for employee pension benefits and share based compensation in 2006.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regatding the reliability of financizl reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accofdance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemnal controt over financial reporting
inclydes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accufately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assufance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with|generally accepied accounting principles, and that reccipts and expenditures of the company arc being made
only]in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assufance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control aver financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
polikies or procedures may deteriorate.

fs/ BricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Miltvaukee, Wisconsin
March 7, 2008
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Gehl Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

In Thousands, Except Share Data - December 31, 2007 2006
Assels
Cash 10,349 b 6,892
Accounts receivable — net 190,439 187,582
Finance contracts receivable — net 4,675 8,371
Inventories 49,093 48,649
Assets of discontinued operations — net 262 3,783
Retsined interest in sold finance contracts receivable 47,730 20,318
Deferred income tax assets 8,849 9,128
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,723 6,310

Total curremt assets 316,120 291,033
Property, plant and equipment — net 35,510 32,415
Goodwill 11,748 11,748
Retained interest in sold finance contracts receivable — long term 28,080 16,810
Other assets 16,504 13,104
Total assets 407,962 $ 365110
Liabilities and Sharcholders® Equity
Current portion of long-term debt obligations 212 $ 2N
Shon-term debt obligations 50,000 25,000
Accounts payable 35,799 39,708
Liabilitics of discontinued operations 105 87
Accrued and other current liabilities 22,443 24,138

Total current liabilities 108,559 89,504
Long-term debt obligations 21,415 25,183
Pension and other postretirement benefits 12,879 17,687
Other long-term liabilities 4,069 1,955

Total long-term liabilities 38,373 44 825
Common stock, 5,10 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized, 12,127,623
and 12,197,037 shares outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006,

respectively 1,213 1,220
Preferred stock, $.10 par value, 2,000,000 shares suthorized, 250,000 shares
designated as Serics A preferred stock, no shares issued - -

Capital in excess of par 85,291 85,006
Retained eamings 180,734 156,796
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {6,208) (12,241)

Total shareholders' equity 261,030 230,781
Total liabilities and sharcholders’ equity 407,962 $ 365110

Contingencies (Notes 5 and 16)

The accompanying notes arve an integral part of the financial statements.
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Gehl Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

In Thousands, Except Per Share Data — Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Net|sales $ 457,612 $ 486,217 $ 446,959
(ost of goods sold 354,393 381,813 354,103
Grqgss profit 103,219 104,404 92,256
.
Qelling, general and administrative expenses 59,609 58,270 53421
Incpme from operations 43,610 46,134 18,835
tercst expense (4,714) (3,646) (5,469)
terest income 3942 4,309 4314
Qther expense, net (5,489) (3,929) (4,324)
Indome from continuing operations before income taxes 37349 42,868 33,356
Provision for income taxes 12,400 14,790 11,218
Indome from continuing operations $ 24,949 $ 28,078 $ 22,138
Lass from discontinued operations, net of $128, $416 and $187 of tax benefit, (255) (774) (338)
regpectively
Lis on disposal of discontinued operations, net of 142, $4,199, and $0 of (287) (7.797) -
tax benefit, respectively .
Ndt income $ 24407 $ 19,507 $ 21,800
Dﬁulcd net income (Joss) per share:
Gontinuing operations s 200 § 226 $ 200
Discontinued operations (0.04) (0.69) (0.03)
Total diluted net income per share $ 19 $ 1.5 s 19
Bhsic net income (loss) per share:
Continuing operalions $ 205 s 233 $ 209
Discontinued operations (0.04) (0.71) (0.03)
Total basic net income per share s 201 § 162 $ 206

Th

e accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Gehl Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Other Capital
Comprehensive Retained Comprchensive  Common  In Excess
In Thousgnds Total Income (Loss) Eamings Loss Stock of Par ‘
Balancelat December 31, 2004 $ 136,461 $ 115489 § (10,112) § 993 3 30,09]
Comprehensive income:
Net nrcome 21,800 $ 21,800 21,800 |
Minicumn pension liability adjustments,

Nel of $562 of taxes 1,069 . 1,069 1,069 .
Cumrepcy translation adjustment {1,355) {1,355) (1,355) '
Unredlized gains (losses), net of $13 of taxes (25) @5 25) :

Comprehensive income $21,489

Issuanc¢ of common stock 46,064 174 45,890 |
Exercisd of stock options, including tax

benefit of $1,110, and other 4479 4 4,445
Balance[at December 31, 2005 $ 208,493 $ 137,289 $ (10423 S$1201 380426
Comgprehensive income:

Net iicome 19,507 $ 19,507 19,507

Minithum pension liability adjustments,

Nef of $321 of taxes 597 597 597
Currency translation adjustment 1,070 1,070 1,070
Unreglized gains (losses), net of $27 of taxes 205 205 205

mprehensive income §21,379

Adoptioh of FASB Statement No. 138, net of (3,690) (3,690)

$1,987 of taxes
Stock based compensation 1,605 k] 1,602
Exercisg of stock options, including tax

tencfit of $1,360, and other 2,994 16 2,978
Balancejat December 31, 2006 $ 230,781 $ 156,796 $ (12,241 $1220 § 85006
Comprehensive income:

Net income 24,407 $ 24,407 24,407

Benefit plan adjustments,

Net of $2.517 of taxes 4,705 4,705 4,705
Currency translation adjusiment 1,790 1,790 1,790
Unreglized gains (losses), net of $261 of taxes (462) {462) (462)

omprehensive income $ 30,440
FIN 48 adjusiment 469 (469)
Purchase of treasury stock (2,283) (12) (2,271)
Stock based compensation 1,906 1,906
Exercis¢ of stock options, including tax
benefit of $220, and other 655 5 650
Balance|at December 31, 2007 § 261,030 $ 180,734 3 (6,208) S§1,213 58529

The accympanying noles are an integral part of the financial sratements.
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Gehl Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Ip Thousands - Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Gash Flows from Operating Activities

Nt income § 24,407 $ 19,507 $ 21,800

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used for)

rovided by operating activities:

T Loss on discontinued operations (non-cash}, net of laxes —_ 5916 —
Depreciation and amortization 4,576 4,553 4,945
Compensation expense for long-term incentive stock grants 1,906 1,605 232
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 33 (38) (162)
Cost of sales of finance contracts 4,666 4,288 2,132
Deferred income taxes {1,344) {653) (206)
Proceeds from sales of finance contracts 145,784 207,821 190,028
Increase in finance coniracts receivable (149,019) (186,188) (154,902)
Increase in retained interest in sold finance contracts {38,682) (19,237) (17.871)
{Decrease) increase in cash duc to changes in:

Accounis receivable — net 421 (19,425) (54,446)
Inventories 1,401 (4.057) {6,037)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,846 (402) (161)
Other assets (1,208) 296 (261)
Accounts payable (5,125) (5,966) 4,426
Other liabilitics (395) (62) 2,232
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activitics 9,799) 7,938 {7,651)

Cash Flows from [nvesting Activilies

Property, plant and cquipment additions (6,364) (6,447) (7,575)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10 2,326 478

Increase (decrease) in other assets t7 (25) 20

Net cash used for investing activities (6,246) (4,146) (7.077)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Repayments of revolving credit foans (3,662} (26,731} (17.595)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 25,000 25,000 29,708

Repayments of short-tenn borrowings —_ (2,626) (47,233)

(Repayments of) proceeds from other borrowings — net (155) (135) 227

Proceeds from issuance of common stock — — 46,064

Purchase of reasury shares (2,283) — —

Proceeds from exercise of stock options including tax benefit of 602 2,750 3,137

$167, $1,114 and $0, respectively ‘

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activilics 19,502 (1,742) £4,308

Net increase (decrease) in cash $ 1457 $ 2,050 $ (420}
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Gehl Company and Subsidiaries
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

Consotidation; Gehl Company is engaged in the manufacture and distribution of compact equipment for the
construction and agricultural markets. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated.

Use of Estimates; The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions, in certain
circumstances, which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reponting period. Ultimate realization of asscts and
settlement of liabilities in the future could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognilion; The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following criteria are met:
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred and ownership has transferred to the dealer or
distributor; the price to the dealer or distributor is fixed and determinable; and collectibility is reasonably assured.
The Company meets these criteria for revenue recognition upon shipment of products 1o dealers and distributors.

Shipping and Handling Costs: The Company records revenues and costs associated with shipping its
preducts within net sales and cost of goods sold, respectively.

Discounts and Sales Incentives: The Company classifies the costs associaled with discounts and sales
incentives provided to dealers and distributors as a reduction of net sales. Discounts are recorded upon shipment and
sales incentives are recorded when offered.

Accounts Receivable: The Company provides financing for its North American dealers. The financing
agreemenis provide for, in certain instances, interest-free periods which generally range from four to nine months,

Finance Contracts Receivable: The Company offers term financing for its products to North American retail
customers and to its North American dealers. Finance contracts require periodic installments of principal and
interest over periods of up to 72 months.

Inventories; Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the last-in, first-out
(L1IFO} method for the majority of the Company’s inventories.

Properties and Depreciation: Propertties are stated at cost. When properties are sold or otherwise disposed of,
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any gain or loss is included in
income. The Company provides for depreciation of assets using the straight-line method for financial reporting
purposes and accelerated methods for income tax purposcs. Depreciation is recorded using the following estimated
useful lives for financial statemenl purposes:

Years
Buildings 25-31.5
Machinery and equipment 7-12
Autos and trucks 3-5
Office fumniture and fixtures 3.5

Expenditures which substantially increase value or extend assct lives are capitalized. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged against income as incurred.
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circumbtances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment would be determined based
on a cqmparison of the undiscounted future operating cash flows anticipated to be generated during the remaining
life of fhe long-lived assets to the carrying value. Mcasurement of any impairment loss would be based on
discoufited operating cash flows.

Iv}l"hc Company reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not
amontized; however, such assets must be tested for impairment at least annually. Amortization is recorded for other
imtanggble assets with definite lives. The Company is subject to financial statement risk in the event that goodwill
becomps impaired.

Foreign Currency Transactions: Foreign cumrency transaction gains and (losses) ar¢ included in the
determfination of income. Foreign currency (losses) gains were $297,000, $899,000 and $(104,000) in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Currency Translation; Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign subsidiary are translated at
curren} exchange rates, and related revenues and expenses are translated at the weighted-average exchange rates in
effect for the year. Net exchange gains or losses resulting from the transtation of foreign financial statements and
the effect of exchange rate changes on intercompany transactions of a long-term investment nature are accumulated
and credited or charged directly to a separate component of shareholders’ equity, titled *Accumulated Other
Compfchensive Loss.”

Income Taxes; The Company follows the liability method in accounting for income taxes. The liability
method provides that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recorded based on the difference between the tax basis of
assets jand liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Product Liability Costs; The Company directly assumes all liability for costs associated with claims up to
specifjed limits in any policy year. Known incidents involving the Company's products are investigated and rescrves
are esfablished for any estimated liability.

Environmental Costs; Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations are expensed or
capitalized as appropriate. Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, and that do
not cdntribute to curvent or fiture revenue generation, are expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental
assesgments and/or remedial efforts are probable, and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

Research and Development Costs: Costs for research activities relating to product development and
impravement are charged against income as incurred. Such costs amounted to approximately $4.5 million, $2.8
millidn and $2.6 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Other Income {Expense): Other income (expense) is comprised primarily of foreign currency transaction
gains (losses), cost of sales of finance contracts, and other non-operating items,

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income is defined as the sum of net income and all other non-owner
changes in equity (or accumulated other comprehensive loss). The components of accumulated other
compyehensive loss were as follows (net of tax) (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
nrecognized pension lpsses and prior service costs 3 (9,636) $ (14,341
Currency translation adjustments 3,786 1,996
Unrealized (losses) gains (358) 104
Accumulated other comprehensive loss S (6,208) $ (12,241
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Stock-Based Compensation: Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS™) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R™) using the modified
prospective methad, in which compensation cost was recognized beginning with the effective date based on the
requirements of SFAS No. 123R for all share-based payments granted after the effective date and all awards granted
to employees prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123R that were unvested on the effective date.

Prior to adopting SFAS No. 123R, as permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123™), the Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 23,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ (“APB No. 257), and related interpretations in accounting for stock-
bascd awards to employees through December 31, 2005, Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options and
restricted stock grants was measured as the excess, if any, of the market price of the Company’s common stock at
the date of grant over the exercise price. All employee stock options were granied al the grant day market price
resulting in no compensation cost for prior periods. All stock-based compensation expense prior to the adoption of
SFAS No. 123R related to restricted stock grants. See Note 3, “Stock-Based Compensation,” for more information.

Accounting Pronouncements: In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements, but does not change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB decided to
issuc a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial stalements on a nonrecurring
basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 157 10 exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its related interpretive
accounting pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if
any, of implementing SFAS 157 on the consolidated financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits enities to choose o
measure many financial instruments and ccrtain other items at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, of implementing SFAS
159 on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R) “Business Combinations”, which is a revision of
SFAS No. 141. SFAS 141(R) retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS No. 141 that the acquisition method of
accounting be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination.
This statement includes changes in the measurement of fuir value of the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree as of the acquisition date, with limited ¢xceptions. This statement
requires in general that transaction costs and costs to restructure the acquircd company be expensed and contractual
contingencies be recorded at their acquisition-date fair values. Companies are required to adopt the new standard
prospectively for fiscal periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact, if any, of this standard on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB released Statement No., 160 (“SFAS 160™), “Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements,” an amendment of ARB No. 51, Under SFAS No. 160, consolidated financial
statements will be presented as if the parent company investors (controlling interests) and other minority investors
(non-controlling interests) in partially-owned subsidiaries have similar economic interests in a single entity. As 2
result, the investment in the non-controlling interest, previously recorded between liabilities and equity (the
“mezzanine”), will be reported as equity in the parent company’s consolidated financial statements, subsequent to
the adoption of SFAS No. 160. Furthenmore, consolidated financial statements will include 100% of a controlled
subsidiary's eamings, rather than only the parent company’s share. Lastly, transactions between the parent company
and non-controlling interests will be reported in equity as transactions between shareholders, provided that these
transactions do not create a change in control. Previously, acquisitions of additional interests in a controlled
subsidiary generally resulted in remeasurement of assets and liabilities acquired; dispositions of interests generally
resulted in a gain or loss, Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 160 on the
Company's financial statements. Presently, there are no significant non-controlling interests in any of the
Company’s consolidated subsidiaries. Therefore, the Company currently believes that the impact of SFAS Ne. 160,
if any, will primarily depend on the materiality of non-controlling interests arising in future transactions, including
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thost entered into during 2008, to which the financial statement presentation and disclosure provisions of SFAS No.
160 will apply.

In July 2006, the FASD issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncentainty in Income Taxes —
an igterpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”), which prescribes a recognition threshold and
meakurement process for recording, in the financial statements, uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken
in ahax return. In addition, FIN 48 provides guidance on the recognition, classification, accounting in interim

s and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions. The Company adopted FIN 48 effective January 1,
2007. The impact of the adoption on the Condensed Consolidated Financia! Statements as of January 1, 2007, was
an ihcrease in total assets of $0.4 million, an increase in total liabilities of $0.9 million and a decrease in
shateholders’ equity of $0.5 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’
Acdounting for Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, [106, and 132(R)” (“SFAS No. 158™), which requires employers to fully recognize the obligations associated

with single-employer defined benefit pension, retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans in their financial
stattments. In addition, SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure plan assets and liabilities as of the end ofa
fisch) year rather than a date within 90 days of the end of the fiscal year. The Company adopted SFAS No, 158
effdctive December 31, 2006, except for the change in measurement date provisions which are not effective until
2008. The impact of the adoption at December 31, 2006, was a decrease in total assets of $0.4 million, an increase in
total liabilities of $5.3 million and a decrease in shareholders' equity, net of tax, of $3.7 million. The change in
mepsurement date provision will be adopted effective January 1, 2008. The impact of the adoption will be an
inctease in total liabilities of $0.2 million, an increase in total assets of $0.1 miltion and a decrease in shareholders’
equity, net of tax, of $0.1 mitlion,

Noje 2 - Discontinued Operations

In March 2006, the Company decided to discontinue the manufacturing and distribution of its agricultural
implement products, The agricultural implement business included one manufacturing facility and refated

ufacturing machinery and equipment. The reduction in headcount totaled 140 employees, which included both
mafufacturing and administrative positions related to the agricultural implement product line. Asa result of this
action, the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes have been restated to present the results of the
aggicultural implement business as discontinued operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the discontinuation of the agricultural implement product line was concluded
andl resulted in an after-tax charge to the Company’s earnings for the year ended December 31, 2007 of $£0.3 million,
or 50.02 per diluted share which included additional employee severance and related benefits costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2006 the discontinuation of the product line resulted in an after-tax charge
of §7.8 million, or $0.63 per diluted share. The cumulative after-tax charge is comprised of non-cash asset
impairment charges of $5.9 million related to agricultural implement field and factory inventory and certain
préperty, plant and equipment, and cash charges related to severance and other employee termination costs of $2.2
million.
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The following table summarizes the pre-tax charge associated with the discontinued operations (in

thousands):
Employee Severance Asset
and Related Benefits Impairment Total
Pre-1ax charge $ 2,051 3 11,682 5 13,733
Non-cash adjustments (680) {11,682) (12,362)
Cash payments - - -
Balance at March 31, 2006 1,371 - 1,371
Pre-tax charge 843 (2,580) (1,737)
Non-cash adjustments - 2,580 2,580
Cash payments (1,827 - (1,827)
Balance at December 31, 2006 3 387 $ - 3 387
Pre-tax charge 429 - 419
Non-cash adjustments (286) - (286)
Cash payments {425) - (425)
Balance at December 31, 2007 b 108 5 - 5 105

The Company has reflected the results of its agricultural implements product line as discontinued
operations in the Consolidated Statements of Income and prior periods have been restated. Summary results of
operations for the agricultural implements business were as follows (in thousands):

Yeur Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Net sales s 150 $ 10,489 $ 31,255
Pretax loss from discontinued

operations S (383) §  (1,190) L3 (525)
Pretax loss on disposal of

discontinued operations (429) (11,996) .
Income 1ax benefit 270 4615 187
Loss from discontinued operations s (542) $  (8,571) $ (338)

The assets of the agricultural implements product line are reflected as net assets of discontinued operations
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006

Accounts receivable, net s 152 $ 1,33
Inventories - 587
Property, plant, and equipment, net 110 1,865
Assets of discontinued operations, net : 262 $ 3,783

future research and development facility.
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company reclassified property, plant and equipment
totaling $1.3 million from assets of discontinued operations to property, plant and equipment — net on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as the result of a decision to renovate a discontinued manufacturing facility for use as a
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b 3 — Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains equity incentive plans for certain of its directors, officers and key employees. The
Ipany currently has three primary equity incentive plans: the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, the 2000 Equity
htive Plan, and the 1995 Stock Option Plan. The 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, which was adopted in April 2004

am::mcndcd in April 2006, authorizes the granting of awards with respect to up o 737,500 shares of the

pany’s common stock. During April 2000, the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan was adopted, which authorizes the
ting of awards with respect to up o 812,771 shares of the Company’s common stock. An award is defined

in the 2004 and 2000 Equity Incentive Plan as a stock option, stock appreciation right, restricted stock or
brmance share. [n April 1996, the 1995 Stock Option Plan was adapted, which authorizes the granting of

bns to purchase up to 726,627 shares of the Company’s common stock. These plans provide that options be
ted at an exercise price not less than fair market value on the date the options are granted and that the options
trally vest ratably over a period not exceeding three years after the grant date. The option period may not be

£ than ten years after the grant date.

Following is a summary of option activity in the equity incentive plans for 2007:

Shares Subject ~ Weighted Average

to Optien Exercise Price
Outstanding, December 31, 2006 759,871 $ 15.0!
Granted 21,000 30.84
Exercised (42,625) 10.21
Cancelled (5,938) 30.46
Outstanding, December 31, 2007 732,308 $ 516

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company awarded stock options to certain key employees. Awards of stock

optipns under the plans are subject to certain vesting requirements. There were 21,000, 129,284 and 24,000 stock

optibns awarded in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, with a weighted average fair marke! value of $11.59, $13.80

and
Ded
resp

$13.90 per share, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of the options exercised during the years ended
ember 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 totaled $0.7 million, $3.9 million and $3.3 million,

ectively.

Options outstanding for the plans at December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Weighted Average Weighted Aggregate
Remaining Average Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Qutstanding Contractual Exercise Price Value

Prices Shares Life (years) pet Share (000’s)

$ 500-%999 321,637 4.10 $ 877 $ 2,340
$ 10.00-3%14.99 138,000 i $11.54 $ 621
$ 1500-%1999 131,875 7.01 $17.07 s -
$ 30.00-33599 141,596 8.36 $33.80 5 -
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Options exercisable under the plans at December 31, 2007 were a5 follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Range of Exercise Exercisable Exercise Price Remaining Aggregate
Prices Shares per Share Contractual Intrinsic
Life (years)  Value {000's) [
§ 500-5999 321,637 s 877 4.10 $ 2340 |
$ 10.00-%$14.99 138,000 $11.54 37 $ 621
$ 1500-81%999 125,075 51694 6.99 ) - :
$ 30.00-83599 40,199 $34.31 8.19 3 -

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company awarded restricted shares under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan to certain
key employees. Awards of restricted stock under the plan are subject 10 certain vesting requirements. There were
26]118, 26,257 and 5,250 restricted shares awarded in 2007, 2006 and 20085, respectively, with an average fair
market value of $26.71, $34.04 and $25.05 per share. Compensation cxpense related 1o restricted stock awards is
baked upon the market price at the date of award and is charged to camings over the vesting period. Compensation
expense related 10 the awarding of restricted shares was $897,597, $478,790 and $232,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
regpectively.

Quistanding Shares Weighted Average Grant

Restricted Stock Date Fair Value
Qutstanding (unvested), December 31, 2006 70,484 3 23.03
Granted 26,118 26.71
Vested (43.477) 16.05
Forfeited (1,014) 31.52
Outstanding (unvested), December 31, 2007 52,111 s 31.31

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R which establishes
adcounting for equity instruments exchanged for employee services. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 123R,
share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on a calculated fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense over the employee’s requisite service period (vesting period of the equity grant). Prior to
January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for share-based compensation to employees in accordance with APB No.
23% and related interpretations. The Company also followed the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 as
amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure™ (“"SFAS No.
148"). The Company elected to adopt the modified prospective transition method as provided by SFAS No. 123R
and, accordingly, financial statement amounts for the prior periods presented in this Form 10-K have not been
rdstated to reflect the fair value method of expensing share-based compensation.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Key input
agsumptions used to estimale the fair value of stock options include the exercise price of the award, the expected
option term, the expected volatility of the Company’s stock over the option's expected term, the risk-free interest
te over the option’s expected term, and the Company's expected annual dividend yield. The Company believes

t the valuation technique and the approach utilized to develop the underlying assumptions are appropriate in
calculating the fair values of the Company's stock options granted during the ended December 31, 2007. Estimates
fair value are not intended to predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by persons who receive
uity awards.
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The fair value of the option grants during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2007 __December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Expected option term {1) 4.5 years 4.5 ycars 7 years
Expected volatility factor (2) 37.95% 40.24% 37.08%
Risk-free interest rate (3) 4.58% 4.70% 4.12%
Expected annual dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

(n The option terms for 2007 and 2006 grants were determined using historica) exercise data including all
exercises occurring during the last ten year period. The option term for 2005 was determined using the
simplified method for estimating option life under Siaff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 “Share-Based
Payment,” which expresses the SEC staff’s views regarding the interaction between SFAS No. 123R
and certain SEC rules including the valuation of share-based payments.

2) The stock volatility for each grant is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock
over the most recent period equal to the expected option life of the grant.

&) The risk-free interest rate for periods equal to the expected term of the share option is based on the 4.5-
year U.S. Treasury Strip Rate for 2007 and 2006 and the 7-year U.S. Treasury Strip Rate for 2003 in
effect at the date of the grant.

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized pre-tax compensation expense
ofl$1.0 million and $1.1 million, respectively, related to unvested stock options. The after tax impact totaled $0.7
million in both 2007 and 2006, or $0.05 and $0.06 per diluted share, respectively. As of December 31, 2007 there
was $1.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share-based compensation
arfangements granted under the Company’s equity incentive plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

The Company did not recognize compensation expense for employee share-based awards for the year
enlded December 31, 20085, as the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock awards equaled the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The Company did recognize compensation expense under APB No. 25
refating 10 centain restricted stock grants as the grants have no cxcrcise price.

The Company had previously adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS No. 148
through disclosure only. The following table illustrates the effects on net income and earnings per share as if the
Cpmpany had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to share based employee awards (in
thousands, except per share data).

Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net income, as reporied $21,800
Add: stock-based compensation expense included in
reported net income under APB No. 25, net of tax 154

Less: stock-based compensation expense determined based on
fair value method, net of tax (700)
Pro forma net income $21,254
Diluted net income per share:

As reported £ 197

Pro forma $ 192
Basic net income per share:

As reported $ 206

Pro forma $ 201
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Npte 4 - Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable were comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Accounts receivable $ 196,175 $ 192453
Less allowances for:
doubtful accounts (5,562) (4,697)
returns and dealer discounts (174) (174)
$ 190,439 $ 187,582

The Company retains as collateral a security interest in the equipment associated with accounts receivable.

Note § - Finance Contracts Receivable

Unsold finance contracts receivable were comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Finance contracts receivable $ 15526 $ 15397
allowance for doubtful accounts {4,637) (3,077)
10,889 12,320
Less: non-current portion (6,214) (3,94%)
Current portion S 4,675 3 8371

The unsold finance contracts receivable at December 31, 2007 have a weighted-average interest rate of
proximately 5.8%. The Company retains as collatcral a security interest in the equipment associated with unsold
nance contracts receivable, The Company also maintains certain levels of dealer recourse deposits as additional
curity associated with finance contracts receivable. The dealer recourse deposits totaled $2.2 million and $2.3
illion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

In March 2006, the Company entered into an asset securitization facility (“the Securitization Facility”) with a
ancial institution {the “Purchaser”) whereby the Company can seli, through a revalving securitization facility, up
$300 million of retail and flect installment sale contracts {“installment sale contracts” or “finance contracts
eivable”). The Securitization Facility has a final maturity date in March 2009, subject to annual renewal by the
rchaser. Under the Securitization Facility, the Company sells portfolios of its finance contracts receivable to a
holly-owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose subsidiary (“SPE") which, in turn, sells each such portfolio to a
holly-owned bankruptcy-remote special purpose subsidiary of the SPE. The wholly-owned bankruptcy-remote
pecial purpose subsidiary of the SPE sells a participating interest in each such portfolio of finance contracts
eceivable to the Purchaser (approximately 73% of the discounted value of the finance contract receivable portfolio).

e Purchaser has no recourse against the Company for uncollectible finance contracts receivable, if any; however,
¢ Company's retained interest in the portfolio of finance contracts receivable is subordinate to the Purchaser’s
terest. The Company has retained collection and administrative responsibilities for each sold portfolio of finance
ontracts receivable. In 2006, the Company incurred one-time transaction costs of $0.7 million, which are included
other ¢xpense in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Income, related to the implementation of the
Securitization Facility.

The Securitization Facility replaced the previous $150 million revolving sccuritization facility the Company
erminated in February 2006. The participating interest in finance contracts receivable that had been sold under the
previous securitization facility was purchased by the Purchaser in March 2006.




The following summarizes the Company’s sales of retail finance contracts receivable through the asset
sccur'itizalion facilities (in thousands):

2007 2006
Value of contracts sold $ 161,717 § 193,470
Cash received on sales of contracts 119,615 167,651
Retained interest in contracts sold 75,810 37,128
Cost of sales of finance contracts $ 3665 § 3277

The Company’s retained interest is recorded at fair value, which is calculated based on the present value of
imated future cash flows and reflects prepayment and loss assumptions, which are based on expected results using
ical results. At December 31, 2007, the fair valuc of the retained interest was calculated using an interpolated
tee rate of return of 3.05% based on U.S, Treasury rates, an approximate |7 month weighted-average
prepdyable portfolio life and an approximate 1.7% loss rate. Changes in any of these assumptions could affect the
calcllated value of the retained interest, A 10% increase in the discount rate would decrease the fair value of the
retaiged interest by $0.3 million, A 10% increase in the loss rate would decrease the fair value of the retained
intergst by $0.5 million. Retained interest of $47.7 million was included in retained interest in sold finance contracts
receiable as part of current assets and $28.1 million was included in retained interest in sold finance contracts
receipable as part of non-current assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007.

In connection with the Company’s Securitization Facility, the Company and the SPE are parties to interest
rate $wap agreements to manage the SPE’s interest rate exposure from floating rate debt. The term and notional
balances of the swap agreements are matched to the anticipated repayment profile of the aggregate portfolio of
secutitized finance contracts. Effective December 31, 2007, the Company’s variable to fixed rate obligations are an
apgregate swapped notional balance of $267.0 million decreasing over time to $0 by December 31, 2013. As of

are deemed ineffective under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Insiruments and
ing Activities.” Accordingly, changes in fair value are recognized in eamings each period as part of the
Company's retained interest valuation. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s retained intcrest calculation was
reduged by $5.4 million as a result of the swap liability. During the fourth quarter of 2007, an immaterial efror was
identjfied in the accounting for the interest rate swap arrangement contained within the valuation of retained interest
that resulted in a charge to the fourth quarter totaling $1.4 million that related to the year ended December 31, 2006.

The Company’s retained interest calculation is based on the present value of estimated future cash flows
which is affected by interest paid on the underlying capital advance. A 10% increase or decrease in the average cost
of th¢ SPE’s floating rate capital advance would result in a pre-tax change in the valuation of the Company’
retained interest of approximately $1.4 million based on the total portfolio of securitized finance contracts at
December 31, 2007.

The total credit capacity under the 2006 Securitization Facility is $300 million, with finance contracts
receivable sold and being serviced by the Company totaling $277.8 million at December 31, 2007. Of the $277.8
millign in sold contracts receivable, $21.8 million were greater than 60 days past due at December 31, 2007. Credit
losseq on contracts sold through the program were $0.7 million as of December 31, 2007,

During 2005, the loss on sale of finance contracts rcceivable was partially offset by a $0.4 million realized
gain g¢n the termination of inlerest rate swap contracts that were put in place to hedge gains / losses on the sale of
finange contracts receivable (see Note 13). The Company received $2.6 million, $1.7 million and $0.7 million in
servide fee income during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In addition to the sale of finance contracts receivable through the asset Sccuritization Facility, the Company
sold finance contracts through limited recourse arrangements during 2007 and 2006. Based on the terms of the
sales, [recourse to the Company is limited to 5% of the sold portfolio of finance contracts receivable. Amounts to
coverpotential losses on these sold finance contracts receivable are included in the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s sales of finance contracts receivable through these

rrangements during 2007, 2006 and 2003 (in thousands):

1 2007 2006 2005
Viuc of contracts sold $ 26674 § 41,181 $ 87,233
Cash received on sales of contracts 26,169 40,170 85,175
Cdst of sales of finance contracts $§ 1,000 § 1,011 § 2058

At December 31, 2007, the Company serviced $353.4 million of sold finance coniracts receivable of which
$277.8 million, $66.1 million and $9.6 million were sold through the asset Securitization Facility, timited recourse

rrangements and full recourse arrangements, respectively,

The finance contracts require periodic installments of principal and interest over periods of up to 72 months,
ith interest rates based on market conditions. The Company has retained the servicing of substantially all of these
ontracts which generally have maturities of 12 to 60 months.

The sales of finance contracts receivable were accounted for as a sale in accordance with SFAS No. 140
‘Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilitics—a Replacement of
ASB Statement No. 125." Sales of finance contracts receivable are reflected as a reduction of finance contracts
eceivable in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and the proceeds received are included in cash flows
rom operating activities in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

ote 6 - Inventories

The LIFO costing method was used for 67% and 72% of the Company's inventories at December 31, 2007
d 2006, respectively. If all of the Company’s inventories had been valued on a cumrent cost basis, which
pproximates FIFQ value, estimated inventories by major classification would have been as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Raw materials and supplies s 20,173 5 22,120
Work-in-process 2,160 3,044
Finished machines and parts §6,275 53,137
Total current cost value 78,608 78,301
Adjustment to LIFOQ basis (29,515) (29,652)
5 49,093 $ 48,649

During 2007, inventory quantities were reduced in three of the Company’s four LIFO pools. This reduction
resulted in a liquidation of LIFO inventory quantities carried at lower costs prevailing in prior years as compared

vith the cost of 2007 purchases, the effect of which decreased cost of goods sold by approximately $1.2 million and
ncreased net income by approximately $0.8 million.
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Nofe 7 - Property, Plant and Equipment - Net

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Land L3 396 3 427
Buildings 27,425 25,127
Machinery and equipment 34,132 30,204
Autos and trucks 227 255
Office furniture and fixtures 19,902 17,146
Leasehold improvements 425 297
82,507 74,056
Less: accumulated depreciation (46,997) (41,641)
Property, plant and equipment-—net b) 35,510 $ 32,415

The Company recorded depreciation expense totaling $4.6 million, $4.5 million and $4.9 million for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Nete 8 - Debt Obligations

A summary of the Company’s debt obligations, and related current maturities, is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 K 2006
Commercial paper 5 50,000 b4 25,000
Revolving credit facility 21,057 24,719
Other debt obligations 580 735
71,637 50,454
Less: current portion {50,212) (25,271
Long-term debt obligations s 21,4258 b -25,183

As of December 31, 2007 the Company maintzins a $125 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the
“Facility”) with a syndicate of commercial bank lenders. The credit commitment under the facility is for a five-year
period expiring October 17, 2011, At any time during the term of the Facility, the Company has the option to
rgquest an increase in the credit commitment under the Facility to $175 million from the current syndicate of
bmmercial bank lenders or any other commercial bank lender(s) selected by the Company. The facility replaced
d cancelled all lending commitments to the Company under a prior secured credit facility entered into by the
ompany with the same group of commercial bank lenders in June 2005. Under the terms of the Facility, the
ompany has pledged the capital stock of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries which are all co-borrowers. The
ompany may borrow up to $25 million under the Facility in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. The Company
ay elect to pay interest on U.S. Dollar borrowings under the Facility at a rate of either (1) the London Interbank
flered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 0.625% to 1.3750% or (2) a base rate defined as the prime commercial rate less
.125% to 1.125%. The Company's actual borrowing costs for LIBOR or base rate borrowings is determined by
ference 10 a pricing grid based on the Company's ratio of funded debt to total capitalization. Interest on amounts
Porrowed under the Facility in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar will be priced ai a rate equal to LIBOR plus
.625% to 1.375%. As of December 31, 2007 the weighted average interest rate on Company borrowings
butstanding under the Facility was 5.99%.

-

The Facility requires the Company to maintain compliance with certain financial covenants related to lotal
tapitalization, interest expense coverage, tangible net worth, capital expenditures and operating lease spending. The
Company was in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2007.
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Borrowings under the Facility were $21.1 million at December 31, 2007 versus $24.7 million a year earlicr.
Available unused borrowings under the Facility were $53.9 million at December 31, 2007 versus $75.1 million a
ydar carlier. Available borrowings at December 31, 2007 were reduced by $50.0 million of commercial paper
discussed in “Short-term Borrowings” below.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company began to issue commercial paper through a placement agent

to| fund a portion of its short term working capifal needs. The Company had the ability to setl up to $25.0 million in

cqmmercial paper under this arrangement. In April 2007, this arrangement was expanded to give the Company the

ility to sell up to $50.0 million in commercial paper. The Company’s commercial paper program is backed by the

credit commitment under the Company's revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2007, the Company had $50.0
illion of short term commercial paper outstanding at a rate of 5.07% compared to $25.0 million outstanding at
ecember 31, 2006 at a rate of 5.45%.

k>

In May 2006, the Company entered into a $10 million committed line of credit Facility with a commercial
bhnk lender. Borrowings under this facility accrued interest at 1.15% above the LIBOR for 30 day deposits reset
onthly and are secured by a first priority lien on an assigned pool of retail finance contracts receivable. This
cility expired on Aprl 30, 2007.

In addition, the Company has access to a €2.5 million committed foreign short-term credit facility. There
were no borrowings outstanding under this facility at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The Company believes it has adequate capital resources and borrowing capacity to meet its projected capital
requirements for the foresecable future, Requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, pension fund
dontributions and debt maturities in fiscal 2008 will continue to be funded by operations and the Company’s
borrowing arrangements.

Annual maturities of debt abligations are as follows (in thousands):

Year Maturity Amount
2008 3 50212
2009 212
2010 156
201 21,057
2012 -
Total $ 71,637

Interest paid on total debt obligations was $4.6 million, $3.7 million and $5.5 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Note 9 - Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued and other current liabilities were comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 11, 2007 2006
Accrued salaries and wages $  54M § 7,135
Dealer recourse deposits 2,158 2,292
Accrued wa;rramy costs 5,704 5,778
Accrued product Hability costs 3,041 3,288
Accrued pension obligations 359 403
Other 5,704 5,242

5 22443 $ 24,138
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future
a com,

n general, the Company provides warranty coverage on equipment for a period of up to twelve months. The

d existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet date. The Company records warranty expense as
nent of selling, general and administrative expense. While the Company's warranty costs have historically

Compdny's reserve for warranty claims is established based on the best estimate of the amounts necessary to settle
P ry

been Within its calculated estimates, it is possible that future warranty costs could differ from those estimates.

The changes in the carrying amount of the Company's total product warranty liability for the years ended

Dcchbcr 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Note

2007 2006
Balance beginning of year $5718 § 5892
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 5,033 6,449
Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in (175) (272)
estimates)
Settlements made {in cash or in kind) during the period {4,932) (6,291)
Balance end of year $ 5704 § 5778

10 - Income Taxes

The income 1ax provision for continuing operations recorded for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006

and 2005 consisted of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31, Federal State Foreign Total
1007 Current $ 10,609 §$ 156 $ 29719 § 13,744
Deferred (1,363) — 19 (1,344)

Total S 9246 $ 156 $ 2998 $ 12400

1006 Current $§ 12776 $ 265 § 2402 $ 15443

Deferred (1,045) — 392 (653)

Total $§ 11,731 § 265 $§ 2,794 5 14,790

2005 Current $ 9237 % 31 $ 1876 § 11,424
Deferred (206) — _ (206)
Total 5 9031 § 311 $ 1,876 § 11,218

$3.4

Domestic income from continuing operations before income taxes was $28.7 million, $35.7 million and $28.3

million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Foreign income from continuing operations before income taxes was
million, $7.1 million and $5.1 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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A reconciliation between the reported income tax provision and the federal statutory rate follows (as a percent
pf pre-tax income}:

2007 2006 2005
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax effect 0.2 04 0.6
Foreign export sale benefit —_ 0.7 (1.0)
Domestic production benefit (1.3) (0.4) (0.4)
Adjustment of estimated income tax accruals 1.7 0.2) (0.9)
Valuation of state net operating loss 1.4 — -
Tax credits 0.7) — (0.2)
Fareign rate differential 04 0.7 0.5
Finalization of prior year tax retumns (0.3) — (0.2)
Other, net 04 (0.3) 0.2

33.2% 34.5% 33.6%

The Company’s temporary differences and carry forwards which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities
tonsisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued expenses and reserves $ 7215 $§ 6444
Pension benefits 2,207 4,280
Asset valuation reserves 588 2,192
Operating loss carry forwards 73 788
Equity compensation benefits 1,074 640
Securitization retained interest 993 527
Tax credit carry forwards 283 181
Other 167 66
Total gross deferred tax assets 13,258 15,118
Less valuation allowance {514) (969)
Deferred tax assets 12,744 14,149

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment (2,616) {2,967)

Prepaid expenses {366) (491)
(2,982) (3,458)

Net deferred tax asset $ 9762 $ 10,691
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The net deferred tax asset is included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the following captions (in
thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Deferred income tax assets $ 8849 $ 9,128
Other assets 913 1,561

$ 9762 $ 10,691

At December 31, 2007, the Company had state net operating loss carry forwards of $13.9 million and state
tax qredits of $0.3 million available for the reduction of future income tax liabilities. Both the state net operating
loss Larry forwards and state tax credits will expire at various dates between 2008 and 2027. A valuation allowance
has ﬁscen recorded against these carry forwards and credits for which utilization is uncertain.

As of December 31, 2007, U.S. income taxes, net of forgign taxes paid or payable, have not been provided on
the yndistributed profits of its foreign subsidiary as all such undistributed profits are deemed to be permanently
reinvested outside of the U.S. Such unremitted eamings of the subsidiary which have been or are intended to be
permanently reinvested were $17.4 million at December 31, 2007,

Cash paid related to income taxes during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $9.8 million, $14.8 million and $11.7
millipn, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S, Federal jurisdiction, and various state
and fpreign jurisdictions. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48. [n accordance with FIN 48, the
Company recognized a cumulative-effect adjustment of $0.5 million, increasing its liability for unrecognized tax
benetits along with related interest and penalties, and reducing the January 1, 2007 balance of retaincd camings.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in millions):

Balance at January 1, 2007 5 30
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 1.2
Additions for tax positions of prior years -
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (0.4)
Setilements and lapse of statue of limitations ©.1)
Balance at December 31, 2007 s 3.7

Included in the balance at December 31, 2007, is $3.1 million of unrecognized tax benefits which would
impagt our effective income tax rate if recognized. The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related
to unfecognized tax benefits in income tax expense, At January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, the Company had
accrugd $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, for the potential payment of interest and penalties.

Currently, the Company has statutes of limitations open in various states ranging from the 2002 through the
2007 ax years. The federal statue of limitations is currently open for the 2005 through 2007 tax years. The foreign
jurisdjction statute of limitations is currently open for the 2004 through 2007 tax years. While we expect the amount
of ungecognized tax benefits to change in the next 12 months, we do not expect the change to have a significant
ympadt on the results of operations or our financial position.
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Plans

The Company sponsors two qualified defined benefit pension plans for certain of its employees, an unfunded
non-qualified supplemental retirement benefit plan for centain management employees, as well as other
postretirement benefit plans that include health care benefits and life insurance coverage.

The amounts in accurnulated other comprehensive loss that are expected to be recognized as components of
net periodic benefit cost (credit) during the next fiscal year are as follows (in thousands):

Pension Postretirement  Post employment Total
Prior service cost $ 1 £ 9 3 - $ 105
Transition obligation - - 23 23
Net loss 312 205 67 584

The Company sponsors two qualified defined benefit pension plans for certain of its employees. The
following schedules set forth a reconciliation of the changes in the plans' benefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets and a statement of the funded status (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Reconciliation of benefit obligation:
Obligation at beginning of year $ 51,175 52,145
Service cost 635 685
Interest cost 2,913 2,895
Actuarial (gain) loss (2,157 (1,365)
Benefit payments (3,518) (3,185)
Curtailment loss 220 -
Obligation at end of year $ 49,268 51,175
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assers:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 44,798 43,712
Actual return on plan assets 6,478 4,110
Employer contributions 200 161
Benefit payments (3,518) (3,185)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 47,958 44,798
Funded Status:
Funded status at end of year $ (1,309) (6,376)
The following table provides the amounts recognized in the balance sheet (in thousands):
December 31, 2007 2006
Pension and other postretirement benefits $ (1,309 $ (6,376)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax 6,566 10,620
Net amount recognized 3 5257 $ 4244
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Amounits recognized within accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, are shown in

the following

tabl¢ (in thousands):
December 31, 2007 2006
Net loss $ 6,548 $ 10,594
Prior service cost 18 26
Total amount recognized $ 6,566 $ 10,620

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the plans
havijng accumulated benefil obligations in excess of plan asscts were $49.3 million, $47.5 million and $48.0 million
and|$51.2 million, $49.1 million and $44.8 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s benefit obligation are shown in the following

table:
2007 2006

Weighted-average assumptions as of September 30:

Discount rate 6.25% 5.85%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%

The following table provides disclosure of the net periodic benefit cost (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 635 $ 685 $ 841
Interest cost 2913 2,895 2,880
Expected return on plan assets {3,469) (3,350) (3,307)
Amortization of prior service cost 11 63 209
Amortization of net loss 946 1,179 1,456
Curtailmeni loss 220 - -
Net periodic benefit cost 5 1,256 $ 1,472 $ 2,079

The assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s net periodic benefil cost for the years ended
Degember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 arc shown in the following table:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate 5.85% 5.75% 6.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% B.75%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4,00%

u
as

The Company’s approach used to determine the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption
is pased on weighting historical market index returns for various asset classes in propontion to the assets held in the
Gdhl Pension Master Trust (“Trust”). Typically, the Trust holds approximately 70% of assets in equity securities
anf 30% in fixed income securities. Weighting 10-year compounded trailing returns on equity and fixed income
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umption, which has been set at 8.75%.




The following table provides disclosure of the weighted-average asset allocations and future target allocations
a$ of the respective measurement dates:
2008 Target September 30, September 30,

Agset category: Allocation . 2007 2006
Equity securities - 0-75% 13% 65%
Debt securities and cash 15100 ' 23 25
Real estate 0-15 4 5
Other 0-20 0 5
100% tH00% 1060%

As manager of plan assets, the Trust’s Investment Commitiee (the “Committee”) believes that it must
prudently invest pension assets in a manner that attempts to meet the actuarial long-term rate of return. At the same
time, the Committee adheres to three overriding responsibilities — to safeguard plan assets, to optimize returns, and
t r diversify assets.

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are as follows (in thousands):

2008 $ 3,003
2009 2,963
2010 2,914
2011 2,852
2012 2,785
Years 2013 - 2017 12,851

The measurement dale used for each of the actuarial calculations was September 30.

In addition, the Company maintains an unfunded non-qualified supplemental retirement benefit plan for
Ecrtain management employees. The following schedules set forth a reconciliation of the changes in the plan’s
enefit obligation and a statement of the funded status (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Reconciliation of benefit obligation:

Obligation at beginning of year $ 9,585 $ 6,155
Service cost 310 4313
Interest cost 543 351
Actuarial (gain) loss (817) 2,786
Plan amendments 155 -
Benefit payments (110) (140)
Obligation at end of year $ 9,666 § 9,585
Funded Status:

Funded status at end of ycar $ (9,666) $ (9,589)
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The following table provides the amounts recognized in the balance sheet (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Pension and postretirement benefits $  (9,666) $ (9,585
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax 2,073 2,846
Net amount recognized $ (7,593) $ (6,739

The accrued benefit liability amount is included in pension and other postretirement benefits. Amounts
recognized within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, are shown in the following table {in
thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Net loss § 1,89 $ 2628
Prior service cost 180 218
Total amount recognized $ 2,013 $ 2,846

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of the plan assets having
accufnulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $9.7 million, $8.5 million and 50, and 59.6 million,
$7.7 million and $0 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The assumplions used in the measurement of the Company's benefit obligation are as follows:

2007 2006
'Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rate 6.25% 5.85%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%

The following table provides disclosure of the net periodic benefit cost (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Service cost s 310 $ 433 $ 3N
Ipterest cost 543 351 320
Amortization of prior service cost 2n 97 91
Amortization of net loss 284 67 66
MNet periodic benefit cost § 1,348 $ 948 $ 848

The assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s net periodic benefit cost for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are shown in the following table:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rate 5.85% 5.75% 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are as follows (in thousands):

2008 5185

2009 585

2010 583

2011 630 I
2012 691

Years 2013 - 2017 4,156

The Company maintains a rabbi trust containing $7.6 million and $5.6 million of assets designated for the
ron-qualificd supplemental retirement benefit plan as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The assets of
the rabbi trust are invested in equity securities and variable life insurance policies.

The Company maintains a savings and profit sharing plan. The Company matches 50% of each non-

Hargaining unit employee’s contributions to the plan not to exceed 6% of the employee’s annual compensation.
Vesting of Company contributions occur at the rate of 20% per year and totaled approximately $863,000, $591,000
dnd $729,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

The Company maintains a defined contribution plan that covers certain employees not covered by a defined
Benefit plan. The Company contributes various percentages of eligible employee compensation (as defined in the
ﬂrlnn), and the plan does not allow employee contributions. The Company contributed approximately $638,000,
$558,000 and $476,000 in connection with this plan in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company provides post employment benefits 10 certain retirees in two areas: a $2,500 hife insurance
policy for retired office employees and subsidized health insurance benefits for early retirees prior to their attaining
ge 65. The number of retirees associated with post empiloyment benefit costs is approximately 247.

£

The following schedules set forth a reconciliation of the changes in the post employment plan’s benefit
¢bligation and a statement of the Plan’s funded status (in thousands}).

December 31, 2007 2006
Reconciliation of benefit obligation:

Obligation at beginning of year $ 2,127 $ 1897
Service cost 123 117
Interest cost 113 110
Actuarial loss 274 232
Benefit payments (489) (229)
Obligation atend of year $ 2,148 $ 2,127
Funded Status.

Funded status at end of year $ (2,148 $ (2,127

The following table provides the amounts recognized in the balance sheet at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in
thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Current liability 5 (179) $ (147)
Pension and other postretirement benefits (1,974) (1,980)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax 1,001 875
Net amount recognized s (1,147) $ (1,252)
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Amounts recognized within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, as of December 31,
2007 are shown in the following table (in thousands):

December 31, 2007 2006
Net loss $ 98 $ 787
Transition obligation 73 88
Total amount recognized s 1,001 $ 875

The following table provides disclosure of the net periodic benefit cost (in thousands):

Year Ended December 11, 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 1 $117 $ 9
Interest cost 113 111 104
Amortization of transition obligation 23 23 23
Amortization of net loss 49 53 53
Net periodic beneflt cost 5 308 $ 304 21

The discount rate used in determining the accumulated post employment obligation was 6.25% and 5.85% as
of the measurement dates of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The discount rate used in determining the net periodic benefit cost was 5.85%, 5.75% and 6.00% for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The assumed health care cost rate trend used in measuring the accumulated post
employment benefit obligation at December 31, 2007 was 9% decreasing to 5% over five years and at December 31,
2006 was 8% decreasing to 5% in five years.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care
plans, A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects (in thousands):

1% Increase 1% Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components of net
periodic post employment health care benefit cost $29 $ (24)
Effect on the health care component of the accumulated post
employment benefit obligation $128 $(111)

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are as follows (in thousands):

2008 5174
2009 128
2010 139
2011 146
2012 141
Years 2013 - 2017 730
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NLte 12 - Sharehelders’ Equity

On Qctober 26, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan providing for the
repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of the Company's outstanding common stock in open market or privately
gotiated transactions. All treasury stock acquired by the Company will be cancelled and returned to the status of
adthorized but unissued. The plan does not have an expiration date. As of December 31, 2007, a total of 123,600
res had been repurchased. The Company's Board of Directors terminated the previous plan which was autharized
in|September 2001, The Company had repurchased an aggregate of 227,850 shares of the 500,000 authorized shares
urjder the previous plan,

On September 26, 2005, the Company completed a public offering of 2,395,000 shares of its cornmon stock
atla price to the public of $28.12. The offering included 1,748,125 primary shares sold by the Company and
6,875 secondary shares sold by one selling shareholder, Neuson Finance GmbH. The Company received
approximately $46.1 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares by it in the offering, after deducting
ujderwriting discounts, commissions and expenses. The Company used the net proceeds it received from the
ering 10 repay debt outstanding under its credit facility.

On July 22, 2005, the Company declared a three-for-lwo common stock split in the form of a 50% stock
dividend with a record date of August 10, 2005, and a payment date of August 24, 2005, The purpose of the stock
dxidend was to create additional market liquidity for the Company’s common stock and, thus, enhance shareholder
plue. The information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been adjusted to reflect the stock split.

P

On May 25, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan and declared a
ights dividend of preferred one share purchase right (“Right”) for each share of common stock outstanding on June
18, 2007, and provided that one Right would be issued with each share of common stock thereafier issued. The
Spareholder Rights Plan provides that in the event a person or group acquires or seeks to acquire 15% or more of the
optstanding common stack of the Company, the Rights, subject to certain limitations, will become exercisable.

ch Right, once exercisable, initially entitles the holder thereof (other than the acquiring person, whose rights are
cpncelled} to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of a share of Series A preferred stock at an initial
exercise price of $130 per one one-hundredth of a share (subject to adjustment), or, upon the occurrence of certain
eyents, common stock of the Company or common stock of an “acquiring company” having a market value
efjuivalent to two times the exercise price. Subject to certain conditions, the Rights are redeemable by the Board of

irectors for $.00! per Right and are exchangeable for shares of common stock. The Rights have no voling power
ahd expired on May 25, 2017.

Note 13 - Financial Instruments

The Company selectively uses interest rate swaps and foreign curmrency forward contracts to reduce market
risk associated with changes in interest rates and the value of the U.S Dollar versus the Euro. The use of derivatives
it restricted to those intended for hedging purposes.

During 2007, in connection with the Company’s Securitization Facility, the Company was party 1o an interest

rple swap agreement to manage the SPE’s interest rate exposure from floating rate debt. The swap agreements’ term
d notionat balances are matched to the anticipated repayment profile of the aggregate portfolio of securitized

nance contracts. Effective December 31, 2007 the Company’s variable to fixed rate obligations are an aggregate
apped notional balance of $267.0 million decreasing over time 1o $0 by December 31, 2013. As of December 31,
007 the Company pays a fixed rate of 5.015% under the swap {which adjusts monthly) and receives a 30 day
1BOR variable rate, The reference 30 day LIBOR rate was 4.63% at December 31, 2007. The swap was deemed

iheffective under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitics.”
ccordingly, changes in fair value are recognized in eamings cach period as part of the Company’s retained interest
aluation. At December 31, 2007 the Company’s retained interest calculation was reduced by $5.4 million as a

sult of the swap liabiliry.

The Company’s retained interest calculation is based on the present vaiue of estimated future cash flows
which is affected by interest paid on the underlying capital advance. A 10% increasc or decrease in the average cost
bf the SPE’s floating rate capital advance would result in a pre-tax change in the valvation of the Company's
fetained interest of approximately $1.4 million based on the total portfolio of securitized finance contracts at
December 31, 2007,
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During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a third
parfy financial institution to exchange variable rate interest obligations for fixed rate obligations without the
exchange of the underlying principal amounts. Effective January 2006, under this agreement, the Company’s
variable to fixed rate obligations are an aggregate swapped notional amount of $40 million through January 2008.
The aggregate notional amount of the swap decreases to $30 million effective January 2008, $20 million effective
ary 2009, $10 million effective January 2010 and expires in January 2011. The Company pays a 4.89% fixed
intdrest rate under the swap agreement and receives a 30 day LIBOR variable rate. The reference 30 day LIBOR

ratd was 4.60% at December 31, 2007. The variable to fixed interest rate swap is an effective cash-flow hedge. The
fairlvalue of the swap was S(608,411) at December 31, 2007. As a result, a liability was recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Changes in fair value were included in other comprehensive income (loss).

In Scptember 2007, the Company entered into a series of forward currency contracts (“forward contracts”) to
hedge a portion of the Company's exposure to changes in the value of the U.S Dolar versus the Euro as a result of
the|Euro purchase commitments, The forward contracts will expire between June 16, 2008 and December 15, 2008
and have a notional amount of €6.0 million (58.4 million) and contract rates ranging from €1.0:31.4003 to
€1.D:$1.4014. Asihe contracts are deemed incfTective under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for
Detivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the Company recorded a current liability and an increase to other
expense of $0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2007,

During 2005, the Company was party to three interest rate swap agreements (“swaps”) that were put in place
as hedges protecting against underlying changes in interes! rates and their impact on the gains / losses incurred upon
thel sale of finance contracts receivable. Accordingly, the implied gains / Josses associated with the fair values of
interest rate swaps would be offset by gains / losses on the sale of the underlying retail finance contracts. Under the
swhps, the Company received interest on a variable LIBOR for one-month deposits and paid on a fixed rate ranging
frofm of 3.18% to 3.41%. Although the Company continued to own finance contracts during the term of the swaps,
undler the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the swaps
were deemed ineffective as of April 2, 2005 as the finance contracts that were owned by the Company at the
indeption of the swaps had been sold during the three-month period ended April 2, 2005. As a result, the Company
redorded $1.1 million of other income in the three-month peried ended April 2, 2005. The Company terminated the
ps during the three-month period ended July 2, 2005 and recorded $0.7 million of other expense during such
petiod resulting in a realized net gain of $0.4 million.

In May 2005, the Company entered into a series of forward currency contracts (“forward contracts”) to hedge
a gortion of the Company’s exposure 1o changes in the value of the U.S Dollar versus the Euro during 2005 as a
result of Euro purchase commitments. All of the forward contracts the Company entered into expired during 2005
regulting in a realized loss of $0.3 million.

Note 14 - Net Income per Share

Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per common share is computed by dividing net
infome by the weighted-average number of common shares and, if applicable, common stock equivalents which
weuld arise from the exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock. A reconciliation of the shares used in
th¢ computation is as follows (in (thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Basic shares 12,148 12,051 10,583
Effect of options and restricted stock 311 370 471
Diluted shares 12,459 12,421 11,054

For the year ended December 31, 2007, 159,596 options 1o purchase common shares were anti-dilutive and,
adcordingly, excluded from the effect of options and unvested restricted stock in the calculation of diluted net
come per share.

-
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59




N(Tle 15 - Leases

The Company uses certain equipment under operating lease arrangements. Rent expense under such
gements amounted to $2,929,000, $2,695,000 and $2,037,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company maintains non-cancelable operating leases for certain equipment. Future minimum lease
ents under such leases at December 31, 2007 are as follows (in thousands):

2008 $ 2,097
2009 1,796
2010 1,481
2011 1,316
2012 1,092
Thereafter 382
Total $ 8,164

Npte 16 - Contingencies
The Company is invelved in litigation of which the ultimate outcome and liability to the Company, if any, is

:ﬂ[ presently determinable. Management believes that final disposition of such litigation will not have a material
inpact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.
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Nbpte 17 - Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
In Yhousands, Except Per Share Data - Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2007
Nel sales 3115214 5135347 5104866 § 102,185
Grpss profit 25,764 29,540 24,296 23,619
Ingome from continuing operations 6,463 8,819 4,999 4,668
(Legss) gain from discontinued operations (160) (108) 52 39
(Lgss) gain on disposal of discontinued operations - - - {287)
Net income 6,303 8,711 5,051 4342
Diluted net (loss) income per common share:
ontinuing operations 0.52 0.7 0.40 0.38
iscontinued operations (0.01} {0.01) 0.00 (0.03)
Total diluted net (loss) income per common share 0.51 0.70 0.40 0.35
Baslc net (loss) income per common share:
ontinuing operations 0.53 0.73 0.41 0.8
iscontinued operations (0.01}) (0.01) 0.00 {0.03)
Total basic net (loss) income per common share 0.52 0.72 0.42 0.36
20p6
Net sales 3122123 $139,455 $121,021 § 103,618
Gross profit 26,252 30,123 26,360 21,669
[ngome from continuing operations 6,186 9,385 7372 4,935
{Lpss) gain from discontinued operations (116) 37 (309) (386)
{Lbss) gain on disposal of discontinued operations (8,927) (112) 1,284 (42)
Nét (loss} income (2,657) 9,310 8,347 4,507
Diluted net (loss) income per commen share:
Continuing operations 0.51 0.75 0.59 0.40
Discontinued operations (0.73) (0.01) 0.08 {0.03)
Total diluted net (loss) income per common share (0.21) 0.75 0.67 0.36
Basic net {loss) income per common share:
Continuing operations 0.53 0.78 0.61 0.41
Discontinued operations {0.76) 0.01) 0.08 (0.04)
Total basic net (loss) income per common share {0.22) 0.77 0.69 0.37
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(1) During the fourth quarter of 2007, an immaterizl crror was identified in the accounting for the interest rate swap
ar;mgcmcnl contained within the valuation of retained interest that resulted in a charge to the fourth quarter totaling $1.4 million
that related 1o the year ended December 31, 2006.



Period
Year Ended
December 31, 2005

Year Ended
December 31, 2006

Year Ended
December 31, 2007

GEHL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Batance at Charged to

Beginning Costs and Balance at
Descaplion of Year Expenses Deductions  End of Year
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts-Trade
Receivables....... $ 3,201 $ 78 s 192 $3,787
Returns and Dealer
Discounis......... _ 1,948 595 Y __ 981
Totad.......oovehnnn $5.142 £1.373 3174 54,768
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts - Retail
Contracts.......... $£4.119 3876 § 389 §.4,606
Income Tax Valuation
Allowance ........ $1,299 43 8§15 5 1,087
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts-Trade
Receivables....... $3,787 $2,830 $ 1,920 $4,697
Retumns and Dealer
Discounts .., ...... 081 33 _1.139 174
Totad,.....ooenvenn 34768 31,162 $3.059 34871
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts - Retail
Contracts .......... 54,606 33547 $2,076 $3.007
Income Tax Valuation
Allowance . ....... 51,087 3 _(108) $ 10 5969
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts-Trade
Receivables....... $ 4,697 $1,190 $ 325 $ 5,562
Returns. ........ 174 R - 174
Total . ......ovvnin. S4.871 5 1150 § 325 55,736
Allowance for Doubiful
Accounts - Retail
Contracts.......... $3,027 14241 £.2,681 34,637
Income Tax Valuation
Allowance ........ 5960 E_(365) 110 3 514
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IleLn 9. Changes in and Disapreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no changes in or disagreements with the Company's accountants regarding accounting and

finhncial disclosure required 10 be reported pursuant to this item.

It
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9A, Controls and Procedures
Tclusnre Controls and Frocedures
The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's principal cxecutive officer and

7. Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer have
cluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2007.

prEcipaI financial officer, has evaluated the Company’s disclosure controis and procedures as of December 31,
20
0

Mhnagement’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

10

R

#

H

The report of management required under this Item 9A is contained in ltem 8 of this Annual Report on Form
LK under the caption “Management’s Annual Report on [nternai Control Over Financial Reporting.”

iport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The report under this ltem 9A is contained in ftem 8 of this Annual Repont on Form 10-K under the caption
leport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in

Rjles |3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2007
t

t has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s intemal control over

fipancial reporting.

I1tem 9B. Other Information

—

The Company has no other information to report pursuant to ltem 9B.

PART LIl

em 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Pursuant to Instruction G, the information required: by this item with respect to directors is hereby
corporated herein by reference from the captions entitled "Election of Directors" and “Board of Directors” set
rth in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (" Proxy

tatement”)'. Information with respect to executive officers of the Company appears at the end of Part [, on Page 12

d 13, of this Form 10-K. Pursuant to Instruction G, the information required by this item with respeci to
mpliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is hereby incorporated by reference from the
ption entitled “Other Matters - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ set forth in the Proxy

tatement.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of the Company’s

mployees, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia! Officer. The Company has posted

copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on its website at www gehl.com. The Company intends to
tisfy the disclosure requirements under ltem 10 of Form 8-K regarding amendments to, or waivers from, the Code

f Business Conduct and Ethics by posting such information on its website at www.geht.com. The Company is not

cluding the information contained on its website as part of, or incorporating it by reference into, this report.
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11. Executive Compensation

Pursuant to Instruction G, the information required by this item is hereby incorporated herein by reference
the captions entitled "Director Compensation” and "Summary Compensation Table" set forth in the Proxy
Stgtement.

Itém 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters

bey

Shareholders” set forth in the Proxy Statement.

of

Pursuant to Instruction G, the information required by this item with respect to security ownership of certain
neficial owners and management is hereby incorporated by reference herein from the caption "Principal

The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation plans under which equity securities
the Company are authorized for issuance.

Plan category

Number of securities to be
issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options,

warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outsianding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities remaining available
for future issuance under equity
compensation plans (excluding securities
reflected in the first column)

Equity compensation
ians approved by

curity holders

732,308 (1)

$ 15.16

245,976 (2}

ans not approved by
curity holders

gjuity compensation
|

Total

732,308 (1)

$ 15.16

245,976 (2)

in the Proxy Statement.

(1) Represents options 1o purchase the Company’s Common Stock granted under the Company’s 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan, 2000 Equity Incentive Plan and 1995 Stock Option Plan, each of which was approved by
the Company's sharcholders.

(2) Includes up to 200,000 shares of restricted Common Stock that can be issued under the Company’s 2004
Equity Incentive Plan. These shares are subject to a minimum thre¢ year vesting period.

ftem 33. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Pursuant to Instruction G, the information required by this item is hereby incorporated herein by reference
fiom the caption entitled *Other Matters — Certain Transactions” set forth in the Proxy Statement.

them 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the captions entitled “Audit
Committee Report” and “Approval of S¢lection of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” set forth

1 The Proxy Statement will be filed with the Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A.
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PART IV

15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) 1 and 2. Financial statements and financial statement schedule,

Reference is made to the separate index to the Company's consolidated financial
statements and schedule contained in Part 11, ltem 8 of this Form 10-K.

3. Exhibits.

Reference is made to the separate exhibit index contained on Pages 66 through 69
hereof.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant

has @uly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
GEHL COMPANY
Daté¢: March 7, 2008 By /s/  William D, Gehl

foll

{5/ Wi

Willigm D. Gehl

William D. Gehl,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has becn signed below by the
wing persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
liam D. Gehl Chairman of the Board of Directors, March 7, 2008

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 7, 2008
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Director March 7, 2008
{s/ Marcel-Claude Braud Director March 7, 2008
Marc¢i-Claude Braud
/sf John T. Bymnes Director March 7, 2008
John [T, Bymes
/sf Rithard J. Fotsch Director March 7, 2008
Richdrd J. Fotsch
{s/ Bmice D. Hertzke Director March 7, 2008
Bruce D. Hertzke
s/ John W. Splude Director March 7, 2008
John W. Splude
/s/ Dg. Hermann Viets Director March 7, 2008
Dr. Hermann Viets
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Exhibit Number

3.1)

3.2)
(4.1)

4.2)

10.1)*

(10.2)*

(10.3)*

(10.4)*

(10.5)

(10.6)*
(10.7)

(10.8)*

(10.9)*

(10.10)*

GEHL COMPANY
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Docusnent Description

Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended, of Geh) Company. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2007]***

By-Laws of Gehl Company, as amended and restated through December 20, 2007
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form
8-K filed on December 21, 2007]***

Shareholder Agreement, dated July 22, 2004 by and between Gehl Company and
Manitou BF S.A. [Incorporated by rcference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 26, 2004)**

Rights Agreement, dated as of May 25, 2007, between Gehl Company and American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Registration Statement on Form 8-A of Gehl Company, dated as of May 25, 2007)***

Supplemental Retirement Benefit Agreement, dated as of December 15, 1995, by and
between William D. Gehl and Gehi Company, amended by Amendment No. |, dated
as of April 20, 2000 and Amendment No. 2, dated as of February 23, 2007
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007]**

Supplemental Retirement Benefit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2007, by and
between Malcolm F. Moore and Gehl Company [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2007]**

Form of Supplemental Retirement Benefit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2007,
by and between Messrs. Keyes, Miller, Monnat, Moore, Mulcahy and Rettler and
Gehl Company [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007]**

Employment Agreement by and between Gehl Company and William [, Gehl dated
as of June 14, 2004 (executed as of July 30, 2004) [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004]**

Gehl Savings Plan, as amended and restated effective July 1, 2001 [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.] of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 29, 2001]**

Amendment to Gehl Savings Plan {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quanterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 2002]**

Amendment to Gehl Savings Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2002)**

Amendment to Gehl Savings Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27,
2003]**

Gehl Company Retirement Income Plan “B”, as amended and restated [Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 29, 2001]**

Amendments 10 Gehl Company Retirement Income Plan “B” [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 29, 2002]**
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(10.11)*

(10.12)*

(10.13)*

(10.14)*

(10.15)4

(10.16)9

(10.17)*

{10.18)%

(10.19)

(10.20)"

(10.21)f

(10.22)9

(10.23)4

(10.24)"

Gehl Company 1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended [Incorporated by reference 1o
Exhibit 10,1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
July 1, 2000] **

Form of Stock Option Agreement for executive officers used in conjunction with the
Gehl Company 1995 Stock Option Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1995]**

Form of Stock Option Agreement for non-employee directors used in conjunction
with the Gehl Company 1995 Stock Option Plan [lncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1995]**

Gehi Company 2000 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Appendix A
to the Company's Proxy Statement for the 2000 Annual Meeting of Sharchalders)**

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement used in conjunction with the Gehl
Company 2000 Equity Incentive Plan [[ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-36102)]

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors used in conjunction
with the Gehl Company 2000 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Registration Satement on Form $-8 (Registration No.
333-36102))

Form of Change in Control and Severance Agreement between Gehl Company and
Messrs. Keyes, Moore and Mulcahy [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1, 2000]**

Forms of Amendment to the Change in Control and Severance Agreement between
Gehl Company and Messrs. Keyes, Moore and Mulcahy dated as of June 13, 2001
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.3 and 10.4 of the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Junc 30, 2001]**

Change in Contro] and Severance Agreement between Gehl Company and Kenneth H.
Feucht dated as of May 1, 2004 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1, 2000]**

Amendment to the Change in Control and Severance Agreement between Gehl
Company and Kenneth H. Feucht dated May 1, 2004 [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 and 10.4 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quartcr ended June 30, 2001]**

Change in Control and Severance Agreement by and between Gehl Company and
Thomas M. Renler dated as of August 23, 2004 [Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit
10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004]**

Change in Control and Severance Agreement between Gehl Company and James J.
Monnat executed as of July 22, 2005. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 of
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005)**

Gehl Company Deferred Compensation Plan effective August 1, 2000 [Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended Scptember 30, 2000]**

Gehl Company 2004 Incentive Compensation Plan {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 27, 2004]**
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(10.25)*

: (10.26)*

10.27)*
10.28)*
[10.29)
: (10.30)*
(10.31)°

(10.32)*

(10.33)

(10.34)

{(10.35)

(10.36)

(10.37)

(10.38)

Change in Control and Scverance Agreement between Gehl Company and Danie L.
Miller executed as of December 16, 2005. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.38 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31,2005]**

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement used in conjunction with the Gehl
Company 2004 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 26,
2004]**

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors used in conjunction
with the Gehl Company 2004 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 26, 2004]**

Form of Election Relating to Withholding Taxes In Connection With the Exercise of a
Non-Qualified Stock Option used in conjunction with the Gehl Company 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 26, 2004]**

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement used in conjunction with the Gehl Company
2004 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.4 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 25,
2004]**

Director’s Compensation schedule effective January 1, 2005 {incorporated by
reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2005]**

Gehl Company 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended [Incorporated by reference to
Appendix A to the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders] **

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 23,
2007)**

Receivables Sale Agreement, dated March 15, 2006, between Gehl Company and
Geh! Receivables I, LLC [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2006)**

Receivables Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated March 15, 2006, between Gehl
Receivables 11, LLC and Gehl Funding [1, LLC [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2006]**

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated March 15, 2006, between Gehl Company,
Gehl Funding 11, LLC, Park Avenue Receivables Company, LLC and JP Morgan
Chase Bank, N.A. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2006]**

Receivables Sale and Assignment Agreement, dated March 15, 2006, between Gehl
Funding LLC and Gehl Funding 11, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Company’s Currem Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2006]**

Performance Undertaking, dated March 15, 2006, between Gehl Company and Gehl
Funding 11, LLC [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2006)**

Credit Agreement, dated October 17, 2006, among Gehl Company, Compact
Equipment Attachments, Inc., Gehl Power Products, Inc., Mustang Manufacturing
Company, Inc., the lenders named therein and Bank of Montreal, as administrative
agent [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.§ to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on October 23, 2006]**
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Amendment No. 4 to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of July 13, 2007,
among Gehl Company, Gehl Funding 11, LLC, Park Avenue Receivables Company,
LLC, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
the Company’s Quartcrly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
200771+

Subsidiaries of Geh! Company
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Periodic Financial Report by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Ouley Act of 2002

Proxy Statement for 2008 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders (To be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under Regulation 14A; except to the extent
incorporated by reference, the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders shali not be deemed to be filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commission as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K)**#*

nagement contract or compensatory plan or arrangement,
ission File No. 0-18110.
ission File No. 01-335(4
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Board of Directors

Thomas ). Boldt (1, 2)
Chief Executive Off cer,
The Boldt Company

Marcel-Claude Braud
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Manitou Group

John T, Byrnes (2% 3)
President and Executive Managing
Director, Mason Wells, Inc.

Richard ). Fotsch (3)
President, Globa! Power Group
of Kohler Company

William D. Geh!
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

8ruce D. Hertzke (1}
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Winnebago Industries, inc.

GerRL.

John W. Splude (1% 2}
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, HK Systems, Inc,

Dr. Hermann Viets (2, 3%
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Milwaukee Schoot of Engineering

COMMITTEES: 1) Audit 2} Compensction 3) Nominating and Corporate Governance *Committee Chairman

Officers

William D. Gehl
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

Malcolm F. Moore
President and Chief Operating Officer

Thomas M. Rettler
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Information

Michael ). Mulcahy
Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel

Daniel M. Keyes
Vice President Sales and Marketing

Daniel L. Miller
Vice President Manufacturing Operations

Geht Company provides quarterly
financial information to share-
holders on the Internet:
http://www.gehl.com.

Additionally, copies of Gehl
Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for 2007, as well as other
financial information about the
Company, are available from:

Michael ). Mulcahy, Corporate
Secretary, Phone: 262-334-9461
Gehl Company, 143 Water Street,
West Bend, Wisconsin 53095

Website providing financial,
governance, product and historical
infarmation about the Company:
http://www.gehl.com

Mustang Manufacturing
Company, Inc, Website;
http://www.mustangmfg.com

CEAttachments Inc. Website:
http://www.ceattach.com

Gehl Europe GmbH Website:
http:/{www.gehl.de

Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Brian L. Pearlman
Vice President Human Resources

James |. Monnat
Vice President and Treasurer

Transfer Agent: Shareholders
with a change of address or
related needs should contact:
American Stock Transfer and
Trust Company, 59 Maiden Lane,
New York, NY 10038

Phone: 800-937-5449

The following are registered 1rademarks of
Gehl Company: All Tach®; Dwacarrier’:
Bynalif®; Dynatach®; EDGE®; Extremedte™;
Every Atiachment for Every Job®; Gehl®; Gehi
Finance®; Mustarg®; PowerBoa®; Power
Protection Ptan®; and Powerview®.
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